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This publication, the financial statements
and the separate edition‘Rabobank Group
Annual Report 2006' together form the
annual report, the financial statements
and other information of the Codperatieve
Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A.




General information

Rabobank Group {‘Rabobank’} is a cooperative organisation whose core
omprises 188 local Rabobanks in the Netherlands with over 1,200
yancnes. Rabobank comprises the local cooperative Rabobanks in the
Netherlands, the central organisaticn Coéperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
Joerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank Nederland} and a number of specialised

subsidiaries. Rabobank provides services in the form of public sector

lending, corporate banking and investment banking, asset management
and leasing in many countries throughout the world. Rabobank puts
the common interests of people and communities first. Internationally,

Rababank aims to be the best food & agri bank with a strong presence
n the major food & agri countries around the world, Rabobank operates

in 42 countries and employs over 56,000 pecple.

Rabobank Nederland is a cooperative whose capital is divided into
shares. It is largely the product of a merger on 1 December 1572 of the
wo largesi Dutch cooperative entities at the time. Rabobank Nederland
has its registered office in Amsterdam and is established under Dutch
law for an indefinite period. Rabobank Nederland is registered at the
Trade Registry of the Amsterdam Chamber of Cornmerce under number
30046259

fembership of Rabobank Nederland is open to cooperative banks
vhose Articles of Assaciation have been approved by Rabobank
Nederland.

The aciivities of Rabobank Nederland can be roughly divided into two
categories. First, its role as ceniral bank for the local Rabobanks in which
role it encourages the establishment, continuation and devetopment of
cooperative banks, and for its members in which role it concludes
agreements with them, negotiates their rights and undertakes
obligations on their behalf insofar as these obligations have the same
consequences for all members. Second, Rabobank Nederland's own
banking activities, which supplement and are independent of the
activities of the local Rabobanks.

The local Rabobanks are constituent parts of an organisation of
cooperative entities incorporated under Dutch law; the majority of the
members are clients. At 31 December 2006, the local Rabobanks had
approximately 1,640,000 members.

Address:
Croeselaan 18
PO. Box 17100
3500 HG Utrecht
The Netherlands

Internet;
www.rabobank.com
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Consolidated balance sheet

) i i i } ) At 31_December
In millions of euros ] Note 2006 2005
éssets B B _— _ : B )

Cash arjd cash equivalen_ts o ) o o 6 ) 1,630 ) 2523
Due from other banks i _ o 49,086 53,065
Trading financial assets o _ o i 8 7 36,789 3901
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss ) 79 7 B 21,468 7 17;449
Derivgtive financial instrumenté . i 1_0 - 18,9§2 N ) 24,135
Lpans to customers N i N o : o 1_1 o 354,‘924 304;451
Available-for-sale financial asse'ts - ;2 - 48,§61 _ 48,644
ljel_d-!g—matgrity ﬁganci_‘;:llr_assgg_ o B o o _'@ - i 1;89 ) 1,908
Investments in asspciatei o 14 N 3;250 7 2,9717
Goodv!ill and othelintqn_gibleuassetsl o ; B Li iS B ) 1,544 7 7 7252
Property and equipment - 7 ) 7 B ;6 5,022 7 3;1 15
Investment properties ) - - ;7_ - 1,—338 - ) _768
ajrrent tax assets B I S ] ) _ 1_76 -210
Deferrgd taxassets _ o ; . o '3; 7: 7: l:{?? N I_,S'/'S
Otherassets } s 10009 6,096
Total assets B - B ) o ) B : j - 556455 ~ 506,573




At_31 Dec_em_ber

In mil_lions ofeur-os_ o L ) ”No.te - - iOOE_» o 2005
Liabilities _ - 7

Due to other banks T e s 109,749
Due to customers i o T ) ) S 20 o 215,89‘.5 186,427
Debt securiﬁesinissué R _ 7 . _ l o 21 . 128,0667 - 115,952
Derivati\;e ﬁnancial_ins_trup‘\e_ntsér:nd_otﬂer’trraae Iiabjlitigs ) 7 ‘ 1£) 7 ‘26,é94

31,182

7066
23804
Provis_ion_s 7 ) 24 7 1,175 931

Othei debts ~ i 22 10,649

Other financial liabilities at fair value through profitand loss _ 23 26,270 -

Current tax Ii_abifities 172 283

De_ferred taxliabiliti_es_ o - o _ ~ ZE_j;i - _836; i o 6%)8
Emplgyee bgneﬂts_ o L 26 1;223 o 1,437
Surbordin-ateddebt T T S _27; - “—“2;50_ T -2,645
Totalliabilies " sygm 480,224

quity o

Equity_of_R:_sbob_ank_NeglerIand apd Ioca_l Rabobanks o 29 17,426 o 15450
Rabobank Member Certificates issued by group companies , , 30 5,808 5811

’ _ 23.234 21260
’ Trust Preferred Securities |l to Vi issued by group companies 3 1,959 2,092

Minority interests o ) ) o 32 4,184 2996

Total equity o ) ) 29,377 26,349

Total equity and liabilities

556,455 506,573




Consolidated profit and loss account

For the year ended 31 December

tn &:i"ions ofeu}os 7 o o -Note 5066 S :2005
Interest i_-ncome- ) . o ) 33 25,059 _7 . ]9-,716
Interest expense 33 18,587 13,455
Interest . ) i 3-3 7 6,472 ] 6,201
Fee a_nd ;ommissi-on incc-»m:; ) ‘ 34 2,741 -~ - 2482
Fe-e ar.*nd -commissic_an expen;f.e ) : ) ) - S 445 432
Fees and comn-1is;ior-| ) '_ o ) ) 34 20 2,060
Incor;\e t-’rom associatesi 7 o 7 ) - 35 ' 556 578
N;t income from ﬁnaﬁci;I assets and liabilities at fair value

through profitandloss i .36 46 (149)
Gains on availéble_r-fol'-sale financial assets 12 7 _ o 38
Other . - L 472 571
ome 77 * T TToms o
saffcosts o 8 a7 s
Other aélminist-;rative-exper{ses ) h o ) 39 2,429 2,031
Dep;eciation and_arﬁ_ortisaaorT - v 49 £z - i
O—pel-'ati-ng e)(|;en-se§ . o - 6,887 6,242
Valueadjustmrentis S ) __ 41 450 o 517
O—pe;ati—ng prqﬁt-before; ta}ta:io;\. S : ) :ﬁ o ) oanz - 2604
'I:éxa&ioﬁ i o _ B : o 42 367 _ 521
N;et;)roﬁt L _7 L o 2,345_ o _2,0_83




In millions of euros

QOf which z?ttributgble’to Rabobank Nederland and local Rapobank§ 29 o )
Of which attributable to holders of Rabobank Member Certificates 30 277 211

Of which attributable to Trust Preferred Securities Il to VI £} 110 1_11
Of_which attributable to minority interests 32 201 184

Net profit for the year

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

C

Equity of Rabobank Rabobank

Nederland and Member Trust Preferred Minority Total
In millions of euros local Rabebanks Certificates Securities Il to W interests equity
At 1 January 2005 14,018 3840 187 3269 23,004
(Note 29)
Arising in the period {after taxation): ) i
Net fair value changes - available- )
for-sale financial assets (74) - ) - i - (174)
Net fair value changes
- c_ash flow hedges 1 - ) - - 1
Other changes 7 12 - i - - 12
Currency translation differences o 22 - 215 328 565
Reclassified to net profit for the
year - available-for-sale financial
assets ] {132) - - - {132)
Total income and expense for the
year reco'gnised_ditectly in equity _ (271) - _ 215 ) 328 272
Net profit for the year 1,577 211 111 184 2,083
Total income and expense 1,306 211 326 312 2,355
Issue of Rabobank Member '
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities Il to VI B ) - 197 ~ - - 1,971
Payment on Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities |l to V! - (211) (1) - (322)
Other . 126 - - (785 _ (659)

581 2,092 2,996_ 2_6,3*39

At 31 Decembelz 2005 ) _ 15450




}Equity oerabobank Rabobank

Nederland and Member Trust Preferred Minority Total
In millions of euros local Rabohanks Certificates Securities Il to VI interests equity
At 1 January 2006 o ) i 15,45__0 S,_B11 2,092__" ) 2,9;_6 _2i_67349
(Nc_Jte 29) 7 7 i ) )
Arising in the period (after taxation): )
Net fair value changes - available-
for-sale financial assets (277) - _ - - (277)
Net fair valué changgs‘— associétes i _ 94 _ - - i - 94
Net fair value changes - cash flow
hedges ) ) B B N (16) o - i - i - e
Other changes " - l _ - - _n
Currency trgp_slapion cEfferences - i (4 - o {133) i (191) (338)
Reclassified to net profit for the
year - available-for-sale financial
assets 295 - - - 295
Total income_ and ex;ense for-éhe-
year recognised directly in equity 93 i - {133) (191} (231)
Net _proﬂt for-the year i - 1,757-r 277 10 201 2,345
Total income and expense 1,850 77 (23) 10 2,114
Issue of Rab'()-bank Me;nber - : 7
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities lll to VI 7 N - - B - - -
Payment on Rabobank Member
Certificates and Trust Preferred
Securities i to VI 7 B - - (277) (110) _ _ - _(387)
Other B 126 (3} ‘ - 1,178 ‘ 1,301
At ?1 Decen%_bér 2006_ 7 17,4_26 5,808 . 1,959_ 4,184 29,377




Consolidated cash flow statement

[+ |

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating proﬁt before raxation B _ o ) . L - -_2:712- i ‘ t2,604
Adjusted for: i ) h _

Non- cash items recognised in prof' it and !oss ; ) B ~ w o ; o
Depreciation and amortisation B B o “7_ o “ 7 ) :341 7 346
Value adjustments o t o o o : _ _; _ _7450 ) : S 517
Result on sale of property and equipment i L e N (1-2)
Share of (profit) of associates and result on sale of subSIdlarle; 7 ~ L o 7-(—5-27)7 ] 7_7 -”(218)
Fair value results on investment properties - ) __ 2 ) ) _ 1

Fair value results on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit and loss ) - 3 _ 7 - (246) 146
Net result on available-for-sale financial assets __ -,-,,_ . B -,i (7) {38)
o o ) B o ) __._ o : w N B 7m0 3346
Ner_change in operating assets: _ o , ) vi B o B o _; o
Due from other banks j - e 1,387
Tradlng financial asset‘s__ -: o o W_ ) B o 3 é252 . (5,741)
Derivative financial instruments o _ ) _ i 5,1437_ - , : -_7,960
Net change i in non- tradlng Fnancral assets at fair val—u_e through proft and loss : h —"(:0-1 9) __A ' ) 2,2_19
Loans to customers {(50473) (3_0,337)

Net change in liabilities relating to operating activities

Deriyative financial instrL_rments g\_nd other trade Iiabi_lities B : o (i,488) - B (QOQO)
Due to customers B . rj 29472 8956
Deﬁl_:t_tr securitie_s in issuei B L __; _ _ :_ o __7 12074 18472
Other debts o L ass o
Income tax pald . . e - (BO%)  (634)
Other changes {2005: mainly attrlbutable to dlsposal of Interpolls) 7 (2.285) (18,681)
Net cash flow_from operating activities B S i ) :: ___leos (1,494)
—




m]

For the year ended 31 December

2005

In millions of eurcs 2006

Cash 1 flows frorn m investing actlwtles o - )

Acqwsmon of subsadlanes net of cash and cash equlvalents acqu1red 1,714 21
Disposal of subsidiaries net of cash and cash equwalents disposed 3 2
Acquisition of property. and equipment and investment properties (646) (456}
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 330 318
Acqunsmon of avanlable for-sale fnancnal assets and held to- matunty fnancnal assets (16,160) (14,885}
Proceeds from sale and repayment of available-for-sale financial assets and

held to-maturity fi f'nanCIa! assets i 12,861 10,286
Net cash ﬂow from |nvest|ng actlwtles (1,898) (4,756)
Cash flows from f'nancmg actlwtles

Proceeds from issue of Rabobank Member er Certificates 2,000
Proceeds from issue of subordinated debt instruments _ ) 1,000
Payment on Rabobank Member Certuf‘cates and Trust Preferred Securities [l to VI (387) (322)
Repayment ofsubordlnated debl e (13) (774)
Net cash flow from financing activities {400) 1,504
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {1,293) (4,346)
Cash and cash equuvalents at beglnnlng of year 2,923 7.269
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year i i 1,630 2,923
The cash ﬂows from mte_:ie‘sia_rg '9&“’9’?1'" the net cash flow from | operating activities. o

Interest income o 7 o 24,675 19,730
Interest expense 17,740 13,586




Notes to the
consolidated financial
statements

1 Basis of consolidation

Rabobank Group (‘Rabobank’) comprises the local Rabobanks (Members’} in the Netherlands, the ceniral cooperative
Rabobank Nederland and other specialised subsidiaries. Together they form Rabobank Group and Rabobank Nederland,
which advises the Members and assists them in the provision of their services. Rabobank Nederland also advises the
Members on behalf of De Nederlandsche Bank (the Dutch central bank). Rabobank's cooperative structure has several
executive levels, each with its own duties and responsibilities.

In IFRS terms, Rabobank Nederland exercises control over the local Rabobanks.

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank include the financial information of Rabobank Nederland and that of

the Members and the other group companies.

2 Accounting policies

The main accounting policies used in preparing these consclidated financial statements are explained below,

2.1 General

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank have been prepared in accardance with tnternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS’) as approved by the European Union. No new standards were applied in 2006.

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies outlined below.
The remaining assets and liabilities are accounted for on a historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated.

Unless otherwise stated, all amounts in these financial statements are in millions of euros,

2.1.1 Changes in classification of results and balance sheet items

Up to 2006, interest income and interest expense on interest rate derivative financial instruments were presented under
interest earnings to the extent that these derivative financial instruments were included in a hedge accounting position.
Due in part to a mere enhanced understanding of results on derivative financial instruments and the financial reporting on
those results, interest income and expense on derivative financial instruments applied by the bank to control interest rate
risks in the non-trading books are recognised under interest. Interest for 2005 is 117 lower as a consequence of this
adjustment. Total of income remains unchanged as the result on these derivative financial instrurments was recognised as
trading result or other income in the previous financial year.

For comparison purposes, the income from Interpolis insurance business recorded last year has been recognised under
income from associates, which also includes the result of Eureko.

A portion of the commission is more similar in nature to interest and was therefore reclassified for 2005.

Insofar as other enhanced insights prompted reclassifications, the comparative figures have been restated.

These reclassifications did not affect profit or equity.




2.1.2 Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liakilities and the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, as well as the amounts reporied for income and expenses during the reporting period. The situations that are
assessed based on available financial data and information mainly concern the determination of the provision for doubtfut
debits, the fair value of assets and liabilities and impairments. Although management based their estimates on the most
careful assessment of the current circumstances and activities, the actual results might deviate from these estimates.

2.2 Group financial statements

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries and other entities (including special purpose entities} over which Rabobank exercises control, directly or
indirectly, are consolidated. The assets, liabilities and results of these entities are consolidated in full,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date Rabebank obtains control, and cease to be consolidated on the date that this
control ends. All intra-group transacticns, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between business units
of Rabobank are eliminated as part of the consolidaticn.

2.2.2 loint ventures

The interests of Rabobank in entities where centrol is shared are consolidated proportionally. With this method, Rabobank
includes its share of the income and expenses, assets and liakilities, and cash flows of the various joint ventures in the
relevant items of its financial statements.

2.2.3 Investments in associates

Investments in associates are recognised in accordance with the equity method. with this method, Rabobank’s share of
the profits and losses of an asscciate (after the acquisition) is recognised in profit and loss, and its share of the ¢hanges in
reserves after the acquisition is recognised in reserves, The cumulative changes after acquisition are adjustments o the
cost of the investment.

Associates are entities over which Rabobank has significant influence and usually holds between 209% and 509 of the
voting rights but does not exercise contro). Unrealised gains on transactions between Rabobank and its associates are
eliminated in proportion to the size of Rabobank’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction indicates that an impairment loss should be recognised on the asset transferred. Investments by Rabobank
in associaies include the goodwill acquired. If Rabobank’s share in the losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, Rabobank will not recognise any more losses of the associate unless Rabobank has given undertakings
or made payments on behalf of this associate. Investments in associates over which Rabobank does not have significant
influence are recognised at cost.




2.3 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

231  General

Derivative financial instrurnents generally mean foreign currency contracts, currency and interest rate futures, forward rate
agreements, currency and interest rate swaps, and currency and interest rate options {written as well as acquired).
Derivative financial instruments might be traded on an exchange or as over-the-counter (OTC) instruments between
Rabobank and a client. All derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value, The fair value is determined using
listed market prices, prices offered by traders, cash-flow discounting models and option valuaticn models based on current
market prices and contracted prices for the underlying instruments, as well as the time value of meney, yield curves and
the valatility of the underlying assets and liabilities, All derivative financial instruments are included under assets if their fair
velue is positive and under liabilities if their fair value is negative.

Derivative financial instruments embedded in other financial instruments are treated separately if their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the underlying derivative contract and this contract is not classified at fair
value through profit and loss.

2.3.2 Instruments not used for hedging
Realised and unrealised gains and losses on derivative financial instruments classified by Rabobank as held-for-trading are

recognised under “Trading income’

2.3.3 Hedging instruments

Rabobank also uses derivative financial instruments as part of balance sheet control to manage its interest rate risks, credit

risks and foreign currency risks. Rabobank makes use of the possibilities provided by the EU through the carve-outin IAS

39. The carve-out facikitates the application of fair value portfolic hedge accounting io certain positions. Buckets are used

to measure effectiveness.

On the date of concluding a derivative contract, Rabobank can designate certain derivative financial instruments as (1) a

hedge of the fair value of an asset or liability on the balance sheet {fair value hedge), as (2) a hedge of future cash flows

attributable to an asset or liability on the balance sheet, an expected transaction or a non-current liability {cash flow

hedge), or as (3} a hedge of a net-investment in a foreign entity (net investment hedge). Derivative financia! instruments

can be qualified as hedging instruments if certain criteria are met.

These criteria include:

- Formal documentation of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the objective of the hedge, the hedging strategy
and the hedge relationship before applying hedge accounting;

- The hedge is expected to be effective (in a range of 80% to 125%) in offsetting changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risks during the entire reporting pericd; and

- The hedge is continuously effective from inception onwards.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated as fair value hedges and are effective in

relation to the hedged risks are recognised in profit and loss, together with the corresponding changes in the fair value of

the assets or liabilities hedged against the risks in question.

If the hedge na lenger meets the criteria for hedge accounting (according to the fair value hedge model), any adjustment

1o the carrying amount of a hedged interest-bearing financial instrument is amortised through profit and loss until the end

of the hedged pericd. Any adjusiment to the carrying amount of a hedged equity instrument is recognised under ‘Profits

and losses not disclosed in the profit and loss account’ until disposal of the equity instrument.




Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that
are effective in relation to the hedged risks are recognised in the hedging reserve included under equity (see note 10).

The non-effective part of the changes in the fair values of the derivative financial instruments are recognised in profit and
loss. If the forecast transaction or non-current liability results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, any deferred gain or
loss included in equity is restated to the initial carrying amount {(cost) of the asset or liability. In ali other cases, deferred
amounts included in equity are taken 1o the profit and loss account and are classified as income or expenses in the periods
in which the hedged non-current liability or forecast transaction had an effect on profit and toss,

Certain derivative contracts, although they are economic hedges in relation to the managed risk positions taken by
Rabobank, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific IFRS rules. These contracts are therefore treated as
derivative trading financial instruments.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments held for trading and hedging purposes is disclosed in note 10, Derivative
financial instruments and other trade liabilities’

24 Trade liabilities and other liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

2.4.1 Trade liabilities

Trade liabilities are mainly negative fair values of derivative financial instruments and delivery obligations arising on short
selling of securities. Securities are sold short to realise gains from short-term price fluctuations, The securities needed te
settle the short selling are acquired through securities leasing or sale and repurchase agreements. Securities sold short are
recognised at fair value at the balance sheet date,

2.4.2 Other liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Other liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include certain financial liabilities that Rabobank does not intend to sell,
but which it designated as held for trading on initial recognition and recognised at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
these financial liabilities are recognised in profit and loss for the period in which they arise.

2.5 Trading financial assets

Trading financial assets are acquired to realise gains from short-term fluctuations in the prices or margins of traders, or form
part of a portfolio that regularly generates short-term gains. These assets are valued at fair value based on quoted bid prices.
Any realised and unrealised gains and losses are included under ‘Trading income! Interest earned on trading financial assets
is recognised as interest income. Dividends received on trading financial assets is recegnised as dividend income.

All purchases and sales of trading financial assets that have to be delivered within a period prescribed by regulations or
market convention are recognised at the transaction date. Other trading transactions are recognised as derivative financia!
instruments until the date of settlement.

2.6 Non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Rabobank has opted to classify financial instruments not acquired or entered into for realising gains from short-term
fluctuations in traders’ prices or margins at fair value through profit and loss, These financial assets are carried at fair value.
Interest earned an assets with this classification is recognised as interest income and interest due on liabilities with this
classification is recognised as interest expense. Dividends received on the financial assets are included under dividend
income. Any other realised and unrealised gains and losses on revaluation of these financial instrumenits at fair value are
included under‘Net income from non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and toss.




2.7 Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the appropriate classification of a financial asset on the date of acquisition,

Financial assets that are intended to be held indefinitely and could be sold for liquidity purposes or in respanse to changes
in interest rates, exchange rates or share prices are classified as available for sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at costs (including transaction costs). These assets are
subsequently revalued at fair value based on quoted bid prices or values derived from cash flow models. The fair values of
unlisted equity instrL‘Jments are stimated based on appropriate price/earnings ratios, adjusted to refiect the specific
circumstances of the respective issuers. Any unrealised gains and fosses from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in equity unless they relate to amortised interest. If such financial assets are disposed of or
suffer impairment losses, the adjustments to fair value are recognised in profit and loss as gains or losses on available-for-
sale financial assets.

An impairment loss is recognised on a financial asset if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an insirument carried at fair value is the present value of the expected future cash flows,
discounted at the current market interest rate on a comparable financial asset.

All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard market conventions for available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised at the transaction date. All other purchases and sales are reccgnised on the seitlement date.

2.8  Held-to-maturity financial assets

Financial assets with fixed terms and cash flows are classified as held-to-maturity financial assets, provided management
intends to keep them for their full terms and is in a position to do so. Management determines the appropriate classification
for its investments on their acquisition dates.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost based on the effective interest method, net of provisions for
impairment losses.

Interest earned on held-to-maturity financial assets is recognised as interest income. All purchases and sales made in
accordance with standard market conventions for held-to-maturity financial assets are recognised at the date of settlement.
All other purchases and sales are recognised as forward derivative contracts until their dates of seitlement.

2.9 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Financial assets that are sold subject to related sale and repurchase agreements are included in the financial statements
under 'Trading financial assets’ and ‘Available-for-sale financial assets: The liability to the counterparty is included under
‘Due to other banks and 'Due to customers' depending on the application.

Financial assets acquired under reverse sale and reverse repurchase agreements are recognised as:

- Due from other banks, or

- Loans to customers,

depending on the application. The difference between the selling and repurchasing price is recognised as interest income
or expense over the term of the agreement, based on the effective interest method.

2.10 Securitisations and other derecognition constructions

Rabobank securitises, sells and carries various financial assets. Those assets are sometimes sold to special purpose entities,
which then issue securities to investors. Rabobank has the option of retaining an interest in sold securitised financiai assets
in the form of subordinated interest-only strips, subordinated securities, spread accounts, servicing rights, guarantees, put
options and call options, and other constructions.




A financial asset (or a portion of it} is derecognised if:
- the rights to the cash flows from the asset expire;
- the rights to the cash flows from the asset and a substantial portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are yransferred;
a cormmitment to transfer the cash flows from the asset is presumed and & substantial portion of the risks and benefits
are transferred;
- not all the risks and benefits are retained or transferred; however control over the asset is transferred.
If Rabobank retains control over the asset but does nat retain a substantial portion of the rights and benefits, the asset is
recognised in proportion to the continuing involvement of Rabobank. A related liability is also recognised to the extent of
Rabobank's continuing involvement. The recognition of changes in the value of the liability corresponds to the recognition
of changes in the value of the asset.
If 3 transaction does not meet the above conditions for derecognition, it is recognised as a ioan for which security has
been provided.
To the extent that the transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition, the transfer doas not result in
Rabobank’s contractual rights being separately recognised as derivative financial instruments if recognition of these
instruments and the transferred asset, or the liability arising on the transfer, were to result in double recognition of the
same rights or obligations.
Gains and losses on securitisations and sale transactions depend partly on the previous carrying amounts of the financial
assets transferred. These are allocated to the sold and retained interests based on the relative fair values of these interesis at
the date of sale. Any gains and losses are recognised through profit and loss at the time of transfer.
The fair value of the sold and retained interests is based on quoted market prices or calculated as the present value of the
future expected cash flows, using pricing models that take into account various assumptions such as credit fosses, discount
rates, yield curves, payment frequency and other factors.
Rabobank decides for each securitisation transaction whether the securitisation instrument should be included in the
consolidated financial statements. For this purpose, it performs an assessment by taking a number of factors into
consideration, for example the activities of the SPE, decisien-making powers and the allocation of the benefits and risks
associated with the activities of the SPE.

2.11 Netting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount is transferred to the balance sheet if a legal right to set off the
recognised amounts exists and it is intended to settle the expected future cash flows on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset
and settle the liability simulianeously.

2.12 Foreign currencies

2.12.1 Foreign entities

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are carried in the currency that best reflects the
economic reality of the underlying events and circumstances that are relevant for the entity (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is the parent company’s functional currency.

Gains, losses and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the presentation currency of Rabobank at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates, which are approximately equal to the average exchange rates. For balance sheet purposes,
they are translated at closing rates, Translation differences arising on the net investments in foreign entities and on loans
and other currency instruments designated as bedges of these investments are recognised in equity. If a foreign entity is
sold, any such translation differences are recognised in profit and loss as part of the gain or loss on the sale.




Goodwill and fair-value adjusiments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are recognised as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate.

2.12.2 Transactions in foreign currencies

Transaciions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
date. Translation differences arising on the settlement of such transactions or on the translation of monetary assets and
liakilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss, unless they are recognised in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translztion differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets carried at fair value are included under
foreign exchange gains and losses. Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity instruments held for
trading are recognised as part of the fair value gains or losses. Translation differences on available-for-sale non-monetary

items are included in the revaluation reserve reported under equity.

213 |Interest

interest income and expenses for all interest-hearing instruments are recognised in profit and loss according to the
allocation principle, with the effective interest method being applied to the actual purchase price. Interest income includes
coupons relating to fixed-interest financial assets and trading financial assets, as well as the cumulative premiums and
discounts on government treasury securities and other cash equivalent instruments. if any loans suffer impairment losses,
they are written down to their recoverable amounts and the interest income recognised henceforth is based on the

discount rate for calculating the present value of the future cash flows used to determine the recoverable amounts.

2.14 Fees and commission

Income from asset management activities cansists mainly of unit trust, fund management commission and administration.
Income from asset management and insurance brokerage is recognised as earned when the services are provided.

Fees and commission are generally recognised according to the allocation principle. Fees and commission received for
negotiating a transaction, or taking part in the negotiations, on behalf of third parties, for example the acquisition of a
portfotio of loans, shares or other securities, or the sale or purchase of companies, are recognised at completion of the

underlying transactions.

2.15 Loans to customers and due from other banks

Loans 1o custamners and due from cther banks are not derivative financial instruments with fixed or defined payments, not
listed on an active market, apart from such assets that Rabobank classifies as trading, at fair value on initial recognitions
with changes recognised through profit and loss, or as available for sale. These loans and receivables are measured at
ameortised cost, including transaction costs.

A value adjustment, for losses on loans, is recognised if there is objective evidence that Rabobank will not be able o collect
all amounts due under the original terms of the contract. The size of the reserve is the difference between the carrying
amount and recoverable amount, which is the present value of the expected cash flows, including ameounts recoverable
under guarantees and sureties, discounted at the original effective rate of interest of the loans.

The value adjusiments for loans includes losses if there is objective evidence that losses are attributable to some porticns
of the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. These are estimated based on the historical pattern of losses for each
separate portion, the credit ratings of the borrowers, and taken into account the actual economic conditions under which
the borrowers conduct their activities. If a loan is not collectible, it is written off from the related value adjustments for losses
on loans. Any amounts subsequently collected are included under the itern 'Value adjustments’ on the profit and loss account.




2.16 Goodwill and other intangible assets

2.16.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount by which the acquisition price paid for a subsidiary or associate exceeds the fair value on the
acquisition date of Rabobank’s share of the net assets and the unconditional liabilities of the entity acquired. Goodwill on
acquisitions made on or after 1 January 2004 is recognised on the balance sheet as an intangible asset net of any
impairment losses. Impairment tests are performed annually 1o determine whether impairment has occurred. Goodwill on
the acquisition of a subsidiary made before 1 January 2004 was charged directly to equity. Goodwill in such case has not
been capitalised retrospectively, as allowed under IFRS.

2.16.2 Software development costs

Costs related to the development or maintenance of software are recognised as an expense at the time they are incurred.
Costs directly incurred in connection with identifiable and unique software products over which Rabobank has control
and that will probably provide economic benefits exceeding the costs for longer than a year are recognised as intangible
assets. Direct costs include the employee expenses of the software development team and an appropriate portion of the
relevant overhead.

Expenditures that improve the performance of software compared with their original specifications are added to the
original cost of the software, Software development costs are recognised as assets and amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period not exceeding three years.

2.16.3 Insurance contracts acquired as part of a business combination or portfolio transfer

The fair value (present value of the expected future cash flows} of contractual insurance rights and obligations are capitalized
as intangible assets and amortised over the term of the contract, which is generally between 2 and 5 years. Rabobank
performs each year an impairment test based cn the expected future cash flows from the acquired insurance contracts.

An impairmeni loss is recognised if the expected future profits do not justify the carrying amount of the asset.

2.16.4 Impairment losses on goodwill and other intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, Rabobank assesses whether there are indications of impairment of other intangible assets.

If such indications exist, impairment testing is carried out to determine whether the carrying amount of the other intangible
assets is fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount is greater than the recoveradle amount.
Goodwill and software under development are tested for impairment each year at the batance sheet date.

2.17 Property and equipment

Equipment (for own use) is recognised at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and impairments if applicable.
Property (for own use) represenis mainly offices and is also recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairments if applicable.

Straight-line deprecation is applied to these assets in accordance with the schedule below. Each asset is depreciated to its

residual value over its estimated useful life:

- Land Not depreciated
- Buildings 25 - 40 years
Equipment, including the following:

- Computer equipment 1 -3 years

- Other equipment and vehicles 3-8 years




Rabobank reqularly assesses whether there are indicaticns of impairment of property and equipment. If the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the recoverable
amount. Gains and losses on the disposal of items of property and equipment are determined in proportion to their
carrying amounts and taken into account when determining the operating result. Repair and maintenance work is charged
to profit and loss at the time the costs are incurred. Expenditures on extending or increasing ihe benefits from land and
buildings compared with their original benefits are capitalised and subsequently depreciated. Finance expenses incurred

during the creation of an asset for use or sale are charged to profit and loss for the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Investment properties

Investment properties, mainly office buildings, are held for their long-term rental income and are not used by Rabobank or
its subsidiaries. Investment properties are recognised as long-term investments and included on the balance sheet at cost,
net of accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Investment properties are depreciated in accordance with the terms of the underlying lease contracts.

2.19 Work in progress

Work in progress is included in‘other assets’on the balance sheet. Work in pragress relates to commercial real-estate
projects as well as sold and unsold housing projects under construction or planned and is carried at cost plus allocated
interest, net of provisions as necessary. Instatments invoiced to buyers and customers are deducted from work in progress.
If the balance for a project is negative (the amount of the invoiced instalments exceeds the capitalised costs), the balance
of that project is reclassified as ‘other liabilities.

Gains and losses are recognised based on the percentage of completion method,
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2.20.1 Rabobank as lessee

Leases refating to property and equipment under which substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are transferred
to Rabobank are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of
the leased assets or, if lower, at the present value of the minimurm lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
the lease liability and the finance charges, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. The correspending lease liabilities are included under other loans, after deduction of finance charges. The interest
components of the finance charges are recognised in profit and loss over the term of the lease. An item of property and
equipment acquired under a lease agreement is depreciated over the useful life of the asset or, if shorter, the term of the lease.
Leases under which a substantial portien of the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (less any discounts given by the lessor) are charged to profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.




2.20.2 Rabobank as lessor

Finance leases

If assets are leased under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable under
‘Due from other banks or ‘Loans to customers. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised as interest income over the term of the

lease using the net investment method, which results in a constant rate of return on the investment.

Operating leases
Assets leased under operating leases are included on the balance sheet under Property and equipment The assets are
depreciated over their expected useful lives in line with those of comparable items of property and equipment. Rental income

(less discounts granted to lessees) is recognised under ‘Other income’ on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised if Rabobank has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If Rabobank expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only if the reimbursement is virtually
certain, The provisions are carried at the discounted value of the expected future cash flows.

2.21.1 Restructuring

Restructuring pravisions comprise penalties for premature termination of leases, payments under redundancy schemes
and other costs directly attributable to restructuring programs. The costs are recognised in the period in which a legal
or constructive obligation arises for Rabobank. No provisions are formed in advance for costs relating to centinuing
operations of Rabobank.

2.21.2 Leave and long-term employment

Leave entitlements of employees and leave relating to long-term empicyment are recognised at the time they are granted,
A provision is formed for the estimated obligation for annual leave and leave relating to long-term service of employees,
with the balance sheet date as reference point.

2.21.3 Legal issues
Legal issues provisions are farmed for the amounts estimated at the balance sheet date.

2.22 Employee benefits

Rabobank provides different pension plans based on the local conditions and practices of the countries in which it operates.
In general, the plans are financed by payments to insurance companies or trustee administered funds. The payments are
calculated actuarially at regular intervals. A defined benefit plan is one that incorporates a promise to pay an amount of
pension benefit, which is usually based on several factors such as age, number of years in service and remuneration,

A defined contribution plan is one under which Rabebank pays fixed contributions to a separate entity (a pension fund)
and acquires no legal or constructive obligation if the fund has insufficient assets to pay all the benefits to employee-
members of the plan in respect of service in current and past pericds.




2.22.1 Pension obligations

The defined benefit liability is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at ithe balance sheet date, including
adjustments for actuarial gains and fosses and past service costs not yet recognised, reduced by the fair value of the fund,
The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries each year using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash outflows at rates
of interest on government securities with terms approximating those of the related obligations. Most of the pension plans
are career average pension plans and the net costs after deduction of employees’ contributions are included under ‘Staff
costs. Actuarial gains or losses from adjustments due to actual developments, modified actuarial assumptions and plan
changes are recognised using the corridor method in accordance with IFRS. Insofar as unrecognised cumulative actuarial
gains or losses exceed 10% of the higher of the present value of the gross obligation under the defined benefit plan or the
fair value of the fund, such excess is taken to profit or loss, spread over the expected average remaining years of service of

the employees participating in the plan.

2.22.2 Defined contribution plans

Under defined contribution plans, Rabobank pays contributions to publicly or privately managed insured pension plans on
a compulsory, coniractual or voluntary basis. Once the contributions have been made, Rabobank has no further payment
obligations. The regular contributions are net period costs for the year in which they are due and are included on this basis
under 'Staff costs’

2.22.3 Other post-employment obligations

Some Rabobank units provide other post-employment benefits. To become eligible for such benefits, the usual
requirement is that the employee remains in service until retirement and has been with the company a minimum number
of years. The expected costs of these benefits zre accrued over the years of service, based on a system similar to that for
defined benefit plans. The ¢bligations are valued each year by independent actuaries,

223 Tax

Tax receivables and payables and deferred tax assets and liabilities are set off if they relate to the same taxation group, the
sarne taxation authority, a legal right exists to set off tax items and simultanecus treatment or settlement is expacted.
Provisions are formed in full for deferred tax liabilities, using the liability method, arising from temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts for {financial reporting purposes.
The main temporary differences relate to the depreciation of property and equipment, the revaluation of certain financial
assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, provisicns for pensions and other post-employment
benefits, provisions for losses on loans and other impairment and tax losses, and, in connection with business
combinations, the fair values of the net assets acquired and their tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which
the temporary differences can be utilised,

Provisions are formed in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, unless the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and itis
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.




Taxation on profit is calculated in accordance with the tax legislation of the relevant jurisdiction and recognised in the period
in which the profit is realised. The tax effects of the carry-forward of unused tax losses are recognised as an asset if it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax items relating to the revaluation to fair value of available-for sale financial assets and cash flow hedges that are
charged or taken to equity are subsequently recognised in profit and loss together with the respective gain or loss.

2.24 Due to other banks, due to customers and debt securities in issue

These borrowings are initially recognised at cost, i.e. the proceeds received less directly attributable and non-recurring
transaction costs, Loans are subsequently included at amortised cost. Any difference between the net proceeds and the
redemption amounit is recognised over the term of the loan, using the effective interest method.

If Rabobank repurchases one of its own debt instrumenits, it is derecognised, with the difference between the carrying
amount of the liability and the consideration paid being recognised as income.

2.25 Rabobank Member Certificates

These are the Members Certificates issued in 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2005. Since the proceeds of the issue are available to
Rabobank on a perpetual and highly subordinated basis (also subordinate to the Trust Preferred Securities) and since in
principle no distribution is made if the consolidated profit and loss account of Rabobank shows a loss for any financial year,
the issue proceeds, insofar as they have been lent on to Rabobank Nederland, are recognised under ‘Equity’in proportion
1o the number of certificates held by members and employees, since there is no formal obligation to repay the principal or
make distributions. As a resuit, distributions are accounted for in the profit appropriation.

2.26 Trust Preferred Securities

Trust Preferred Securities, which pay a non-discretionary dividend and are redeemable on a specific date or at the option of
the holder, are classified as financial liabilities and included under ‘Other loans. The dividends on these preferred securities
are recognised in profic and loss as interest expense based on amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The remaining Trust Preferred Securities arg recognised as equity, as there is no formal obligation to repay the principal or
to pay a dividend.

2.27 Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees are measured ai the amount that Rabobank would reasonably have to pay at the balance sheet date
to settie the liability or transfer it to a third party.

2.28 Bills

Bills represent commitments by Rabobank to redeem bills issued to clients. Rabobank expects to redeem mest bills at
the time clients receive payment. Bills are recognised as off-balance-sheet transactions and disclosed as contingent
liabilities and obligations.




2.29 Trust activities
Assets and revenue involved in fiduciary activities, together with the related obligation to return the assets to the clients,
are eliminated if Rabobank acts as nominee, trustee or agent.

2.30 Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of Rabobank that engages in p}oviding products or services and is subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. A segment in which most of the revenue is generated by
sales to external clients, and the revenue, profit or assets account for 10% or more of all segments in aggregate is reported
separately. Rabobank’s primary segment reporting format is by business segment; the secondary format is by geographical

segment.

2.31 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term investments held to meet current obligations in cash, rather than for
investments or other purposes. Such obligations have outstanding terms of less than 90 days at inception. Cash equivalents
are readily convertible 1¢ known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.




3 Solvency

The main capital ratio requirements set by De Nederlandsche Bank {the Dutch central bank) are derived from the capital

adequacy guidelines of the European Union and the Baset Committee on Banking Supervision. These ratios compare a

bank’s qualifying capitat (Tier | and Tier i} and core capital (Tier [} with the total risk-weighted assets and off-balance-sheet

iterns and with the market risk exposure of the trading portfolios. The minimum requirements for qualifying capital and

core capital as a percentage of risk-weighted assets are 8% and 4% respectively. The table below shows the capital available

1o the Rzbobank and the minimum capital required by the regulatory authorities.

With the market risk approach, the general market risk is hedged, as well as the risk of open positions in foreign currencies,

debt, own equity instruments, Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional risk, the weightings reflecting

the deemed capital required to back them, Four risk weightings are used: 09, 20%, 50% and 100%. For example, cash and

money market instruments are assigned a weighting of 0%, which means that no capital is required to back the holding of

these assets, ltems of property and equipment are assigned a weighting of 100%, which means that capital equal to 8% of

their carrying amount has to be held to back them.

Off-balance-sheet liabilities relating to loans, forward contracts, forwards and options based on derivative financial

instruments have various categories of conversion {actors applied to them in order to disclose these items at their balance

sheet equivalents. These equivalent amounts are then also assigned risk weightings.

Rab_obank’s_ratios

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Tier | and qualifying c§pita1 can be bro&en down as follivs: _ i ~ 7
Ret@ined earnings a_nc_l otherEﬁerves (Lr_'note 29) N 17,055 15172
Payment on R_abobank Mer;lb_e_r Cert}ﬁcates and Trust Pr—eferred Sgcurities_l_ll oVl (38v7) (322)
Rabobank Member Certificates (note 30) o ) 5,808 5811
Trust Preferred Sect.in'_iﬂgs Il to Vi {note 31) ) 1,959 12,092
Trust Preferre_d Securities | and Il (note 27) _ ) - 1,329 1,483
B N o - - - N B B o 25,764 24236
Part of minority interest treatedfas qyalifying capital .71 749
Deductons - (1,084) (125)
Tericapital 7 26,391 24,860
Revzil_uation _rg;ér\.;e _ o ] - —_- : ~ N N 399 93
Deductions (740) o
Part of subo;dinated debt treated as qualifying capital N _ 1,064 1,062
Qualifying capital S 27,114 25072
Rislg—vyeighteg_assets_ i 7 B B _7 7 ] i o _ 247,458 213,901
Ratios . o ) . _ B ; ] 7- ] ‘ - : ) )
Core capital (Tier | ratio) 10.7 s
Qualifying capital (BIS ratio) - N 1.0 18

1




4 Risk exposure of financial instruments

4.1  Strategy for the use of financial instruments

Rabobank’s activities are inherently related to the use of financial instruments, including derivative financial instrumenis.
Rabobank accepts deposits from clients at fixed and variable rates of interest for a variety of terms and aims to earn above
average interest margins on these deposits by investing them in high-quality assets. Rabobank also aims to increase these
margins by consolidating short funds and loans for longer terms at higher interest rates, at the same time keeping sufficient
liquid resources to meet all payments that might become due.

A further objective of Rabobank is to increase its interest rate margins by obtaining above-average margins, after deduction
of provisions, and by granting loans to commercial and retail borrowers with various credit ratings. These risks apply not
only to loans recognised on the balance sheet, but also to guarantees given by Rabobank such as letters of credit and
performance and other guarantee documents.

Rabobank also trades in financial instruments when it takes paositions in tradeable and unlisted insiruments (OTCs),
including derivative financial instruments, in order to profit from short-term movements on the share and bond markets

and in exchange rates, interest rates and commaodity prices.

4.2  Interest rate risk

Rabobank is exposed teo the risk of effects from fluctuations in market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows.
As a result of such unexpected movements, interest rate margins may rise or fall. The Executive Board sets limits for the size
of the permitted mismatch resulting from interest rate adjustments. The mismatch situation is monitored dafly and monthly
reported to the respective risk management committees,

The following table gives a highly simplified picture of Rabobank's repayment schedule broken down by interest-rate type.
It shows the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Rabobank, classified by interest rate period or date of maturity.
The schedule does not take into account assumptions about client behaviour. Assumptions regarding early repayment of
mortgages are used for Rabobank’s interest rate risk model. In addition, the mode! used for due to customers is a portfolio
of money market and capital market items. The assumptions on behaviour have been agreed with De Nederlandsche Bank
(the Dutch central bank). Moreover, the balance-sheet position is hedged with derivative financial instruments not included
in the table.

Every quarter, reports generated by Rabobank’s interest rate risk model are submitted to De Nederlandsche Bank.
The results of a stress scenario based on the assumption that the interest rate curve will make a 2% parallel shift upwards
and downwards show that interest income will probably not fall by more than 1% in the first year. The expected limit for

the second year is 3%.




Non-

Within 1 1-3 3-12 More than interest-
In millions of euros month months months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
At 31 D_ecember_2906 o
AssetS i A_ ) i 7
Cash and cash equivalents 7 713 - 4 - - 913' 1,630
Due from ather banks ‘7 :35,624} 7_ 7103 7 ] 3,8&2 1,977" 18 5.22j 49,086
Trading financial assets _ _ _7 4270 3752 3,037 7624 13,009 5097 36,789
Other financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss_ 4,060 3,759 124 1,285 11,889 351 21,468
Loans to customers 78,685 _ 39,899_ 27174 ) 100,138 108,375 653 354,924
Available-for-sale financial as_sc_ets i : 2,522 i 4,28-4 ) 4,285 ‘ 12,35? 25,365 148; fS,éﬁl
HeId-to-maturit.); -ﬂnancial assets . 180 : _46{37 816 2_§ ‘ o 1,489

Other assets {incl. current tax
assets} ) 2,353 517 881 218 209 6,007 10,185

Total assets ) - _ 128227 5949 39815 124415 158,890 13691 524,532
Liabilities o I S W 7 -
Due to- other ban_ks N 7 j32,419 7 44,604 7 ) 12,1907 7 3,;77 1,166 88‘ 113;6:44
Pue to customers . _7 _17776,1 17 7_7 10,105 4,692 - 10,322 12,22_8 2,435i 21 5,399
Debti_sgcurities in issue ) 35275 38599 13,874;‘ 28,795 11,425 92 128066
Other debts (incl. current tax o - "
liabilities) - _ N 3737 1,120 825 88 15 4,936 10,821
Other financial liabilities at fair

value though profit and loss 2,925 6,330 7,535 4,422 5,058 - 26,270
SuborEI.inated del;tr t o 986 ) 15 . 634 l,-37~9 7‘ 2:;50
Total !iabilities B B ?71,459 ) ] ]00,773 o 39,1167___ 46,869 31,3'_/5_ 7,_558_ 49751"50
Interest rate sen-_s-itivity gapt _1}14-3,232_) _- :-_{1_41,;?9) - 699 _ 77,546 127,515 6,1_33 27_382

—




Non-

Within 1-3 3-12 More than interest-
In millions of euros month months months 5 years bearing Total
At 31 December 2005 _
Assets
Cash and .cash equivalents 896 - 6 - 2,01 2,923
Due from other banks 32,976 13,847 3,902 1,343 455 53,065
Trading financial assets 5333 299 3,836 9,564 4,642 39,011
Other financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 6 2 104 10,344 2,461 17,449
!_oans to customers ?2,123 734,815 36,572 67,35@ 852 ) 304,451
Available-for-sale financial asset; 4,110 11,365 4,333 14,865 374‘ 48,6-344
Held-to-maturity financial assets 115 115 635 24 - 1,908
Other assets (incl. current tax
assets) 533 854 470 64 4,223 6,306
Total assets 116,092 63989 49,858 103,557 15,028 473,757
Liabilities ) ' _
Due to other banks ) 5‘_1,504 4_2,462 6,871 1,02(_) 955 109,749
Oue to customers 164,902 8912 3,503 3,496 2,311 186,427
Debt securities in issue 2%,075 j41,1 66 15,710 6,745— 2 1 15,‘392
Other debts (incl. current tax
_Iigbilities) _ 3 ) 782 906 1,077 . 133 4,402 7,349
Other financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss 3,875 5,438 7174 5,581 344 23,844
Subordinated debt 1,001 13 - 1,534 33 2,645
Total Iial_)ilities . ; _ 25_)_2,1 39 __98,897 34,335_ L :’54,079 1_8,50_9_ B,Ofi? 446,006
interest rate sensiti\{i\-‘.y gap ) (136,047) _(54,908) 15523 85,048 6,9é? 27,751

—

.|




The table below provides a summary of the average effective interest rates at 31 December for monetary financial

instruments dencminated In major currencies.

C

EWR GBP usD AUD  Other
% % % % %

At 31 December 2006

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents ) 0.50 571 - - 0.04
Due from other banks 437 4,79 581 1.37 3.33
Trading financial assets o 3.09 5.03 - ATS 5.36 1.16

Loans to customers 4.89 6.11 4.64 7;1 7 6.90
Available-for-sale financial assets 368 573 7
Held-to-maturity financial assets 3.45 - - ] - -

I:iabili_ties

oot L T T T Tim The s e sk
DUVE to CUST(;JFTIEI’S i - - T _-2_4_?; T 5&4 457 8.34 - 340
Deiﬁt securitie§ in issue - T ‘ 73.781 7 4,63 B ——_3‘50- - _‘56.;) N A_Zéb
Owerdebss s - 2% - -

AL 31 Decerber 2005

Assets 7 - o o - H_kih_ ___-_ - ) —_A_
Coshandasshequvalenss oo as  sa oo
Ii)t_er fr_g:m_ otb(_err‘bﬂsi_:_ 7 _ 7_ B J:i__— o 2.81 o __:1.'}2_“-— '3‘89 _ 585 116
Trading financial assets R _2j;8_‘__5.26 7 73.08 o 422 ' 202
loanstocustomers  ags 580 504 705 623
b orstetnciases e s s e i

Hgld-to-rriaturity financial assets 3.37 - - - -

Liabiliies o S

Due to other banks 2.66 459 349 5.54 2.63

Due to customers 2.21 4,71 3.16 516 4.34

2.44 5.89 418

Debt securities in issue 2.23 485

Other debts 3.90 - 2.65 - -




43 Creditrisk

The credit risk exposure is the loss that Rabobank would suffer if a counterparty or issuer were to default on all its
contractual obligations. Credit risk is inherent in traditional banking products. Positions in tradeable assets such as bonds
and shares are also subject to credit risk. Rabobank is exposed to credit risks. Credit risk is defined as the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to make payments in full when they become due, Rabobank controls the size of its credit risk
exposure by limiting the amount at risk in relation to a borrower, or a group of borrowers, and to countries. These risks are
menitored cyclically and are subject to regular assessment. Rabobank uses an escalating authorisation system to make
decisicns on individual loans. Immediately below the Executive Board, the system takes the form of loan committees;

at lower levels, assessments undergo a review by a four-eyes-principle.

Credit risks are managed by regularly analysing the financial capacity of borrowers and potential borrowers to pay the
amounts they owe in interest and principal and by adjusting their credit limits as necessary. Credit risks are also partly
managed through the use of covenants and/or the provision of security and business and personal guarantees. The ¢redit
risk exposure relating to each individual borrower is further restricted by the use of sub-limits to hedge amounts at risk, not
all of which are disclosed on the balance sheet, and the use of daily delivery risk limits for trading items such as forward

currency contracts. Most actual risks are assessed daily against the limits.

Approximately 51% of Rabobank's total loan portfolio represents loans to private customers (mainly maorigages) who have
an extremely low risk profile. The remainder is a highly varied portfolic of loans to business clients in the Netherlands and
abroad. The proportion of the total loan pertfolio attributable to the food & agri sector was 16% in 2006. The proportion of
the loan portfclio relating to trade, industry and services was 33% at year-end 2006 and is spread over a large number of
clients in many sectors, mainly in industrialised countries.

The proposed BIS Il regulations for credit risk distinguish between the standard approach and an approach based on
internal ratings. The latter approach analyses the cause of actual losses in past years in order to calculate the risk of a
barrower defaulting on his contractual obligations when a payment becomes due. The internal method distinguishes
between a basic method and a more advanced method.

4.3.1 Loans

Apart from due from other banks (49 billion, or 9% of total assets), Rabobank’s only significant risk concentraticn is in the
private sector lending, which accounts for 47% of all leans to customers. Loans to trade, industry and services and loans to
the food & agri sector are both spread over a wide range of industries. None of themn represents more than 10% of the total
client loan portfolio.




In millions of euros 2006 2005

Toloanstocustomers . asaea
SRS o P
Ctogovemmentdients 3098 ___ W3
_sec&riﬁiésg;rlsaéioDsa_ugfn{c;rp_gg\_.'ernmf:_rltcliep?s_ o _ o B —-__ o 1458
securttes tansactons due homprivatesectorlending 8% P05
interest rate hedges (hedge accounting) o o w75 1819
pivatesectorlending . _ __meno e
e e e T T
The Netherlands T T T T T mem vew e 7%
Othercountriesinthe0zone 37 1o% g %
S e e T e e
e e T e
A e e T T T
N I TR
Csthg[c-t;t;nges_J__ ‘; - o N B rq_____ _826__ 0% 57 D%
Jotal - ] - 7324110 100% 278095 _100%

Risk spread in the loan portfolio can be broken down

by business segment as follows:

pivateindividuals 1614 __51%_ 6512 3%
Yade industryend semices ________  1osa% 3™ 8330 30%
Fopdéfagri B B :;’ ) ‘7*___' ﬂ;__ 52497 16% 48243 17%
fota 324110 100% _ 278095 100%

1

4.3.2 Derivative financial instruments

Rabobank sets strict fimits for open positions, in amounts as well as in terms. If SDA (international Swaps and Derivatives
Assaciation) standards apply or @ master agreement including equivalent terms has been concluded with the counterparty
and the jurisdiction of the counterparty permits setting off, the cpen positian is monitored. The amount exposed to credit
isk is limited in each case to the fair value of the transactions plus an uplift for potential future risks for Rabobank (at the
97 5% confidence level). Regerding derivative financial instruments, this is only a fraction of the notional amount at which
the open transactions are disclosed. This credit risk is managed as part of the general lending limits for clients. Substantial
amounts of security or other guarantees are given for Rabobank’s credit risk exposures in relation to these transactions.

The credit risk exposure represents the current fair value of all open deyivative contracts showing & gain, taking into

account master netting agreements enforceable by law.




Contract repayment date } ) o
- S i

On  Lessthan 3 months More than  repayment
In millions of euros demand 3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years date Total
At 3l December2_006 o - o L o
Llabnlltles _ o - . _ ) ) 7 ] 7- _ - L
Duetootherbanks | 5639 B8s6l _ 13574 4181 1637 Ts2 11364
D_ue to customers o 145,027 7 ) _393422 - 4,918 __ 10,291' '[_3_,205 - 3,036__ 315,89;
Debt securities inissue C2ms 49406 | 15887 42156 18581 8 128066
Derivative financial i-nstruments o o - o - 7 ) ‘
and othertradehablllfues_ L 624 72_7_’:}8 _ _2,55371 -_9_,438_ 11,309 32 _26,694E
Other debts {incl. current tax
IlablhtIES) L 38847 1_,4_6_7___ ) _921 o 104__ 142 _4,30% o 10,82.17
Other financial I|ab|||t|es at falr o 7 B
value thro_ugh pr_oﬂ't a_nq' foss 4 333 1,693 _1252! _1§988 . s 26,270
Subordinated debt - - T T ame 7 2%
Towalliabiities 157006 _1819%7 39546 _ 73485 64242 R
Netliquidity surplus/ideficl) __(116880) _ (95444 _ 943 _ 22869 192491 15701 19,680
M3t oeemberions T T T T T T
Towlassets. | 20866 105234 32362 9078 231808 _ 11544 _ 497,892
Total labiities: T T asana 175598 27670 60884 52870 6053 477,188
Net liquidity suplusideficit)  (129,247)  (70,364) _ag2 31,194 178938 _ 5491 20,70‘{4

[

The above breakdowns were compiled on the basis of contract information, without taking into account the way the
different balance sheet items change in practice. This is taken into account, however, far the day-to-day management of
the liquidity risk. The regulations of the supervisory authority are also factored in. In relation to the liquidity criteria of
De Nederlandsche Bank, Rabobank had a substantial liquidity surplus at 31 December 2006 and throughout 2006

The terms of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace interest-bearing liabilities at acceptable costs when they fall du
are major factors in assessing Rabobank’s liquidity pesition and its exposure to movements in interest and exchange rates

The liquidity requirements to meet payments under guarantees and stand-by letters of cradit are substantially lower
than the size of the liabilities, as Rabobank does not generally expect that the third party to such an arrangement will
withdraw its resaurces, The tatal open position relating to contractual obligations 1o provide credit does not necessarily
represent Rabobank’s future cash resource needs, as many of these obligations will lapse or terminate without financing

being required,

D




46 Market risk

Rabobank is exposed to market risk, A market risk arises on open positions in relation o interest rates, currencies and
share-based products, all of which are subject to general and specific market moverments. Rabobank employs a value-at-
risk (VaR) method to estimate the market risk of positions it holds and the maximum expected losses. The method requires
2 number of assumptions to be made for different changes in market conditions, The Executive Board sets limits for the
acceptable risks and these are monitored on a daily basis.

The criterion for the daily value that may be exposed to risk (VaR) is an estimate, at the 97.5% confidence level, of the
potential losses that could occur when the existing positions are held unchanged for one trading day. The value for the
criterion is selecied in such way that daily losses exceeding the VaR should not occur more than once in 40 days on
average. The actual results are assessed regularly to verify the validity of the assumptions, parameters and factors used in
calculating the VaR,

As the VaR is an integral part of Rabobank's risk management processes for dealing with market risk, VaR limits are set for all
trading activities. The actual exposures in relation to the limits together with a consolidated group VaR is tracked each day
by management. The average daily VaR for Rabobank was 24 in 2006 (2005: 19). The highest and lowest VaR reported
during the year were 30 (25} and 19 {14) respectively. This approach does not prevent losses exceeding these limits in the
event of dramatic market swings.

47  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The table below shows the fair values of financial instruments based on the stated valuation methods and assumptions.
This table is included because not all financial instruments are disclosed in the financial statements at fair value. The fair
value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between two knowledgeable and willing

parties in an arm'’s length transaction.

We use the market price as fair value if an active market exists (such as a stock market), as this is the best measure of the fair
value of a financial instrument. However, market prices are not available for a large number of the financial assets and
liakilities that Rababank hoids or issues, Hence, for financial instruments for which no market prices are available, the fair
values shown in the table below have been estimated using the present value or the results of other estimation and
valuation methods, based on the market conditions at the balance sheet date, The values produced using these methods
are highly sensitive 1o the underlying assumptions used for the amounts as welt as for the timing of future cash flows and
the discount rates. The following methods and assumptions have been used:

Cash and cash equivalents: The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is assumed to be almost equal to their carrying
amecunt. This assumption is also used for highly liquid investments and the current component of al! other financial assets
and liabilities.

Due from other banks: Due from other banks comprise interbank placings and items to be collected. The fair values of
floating rate placings and overnight depaosits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed-interest deposits
are hased on the present value of the cash flows, calculated using appropriate money market interest rates for debts with
comparable credit risks and terms to maturity.




Financial assets and derivative financia!l instruments held for trading: Financial assets and derivative financial instruments
held for trading are casried at fair value based on available quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not available,
the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted cash-flow modets and option valuation models.

Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: These financial assets are carried at fair value based on quoted
prices in active markets if available. If not, they are estimated from comparable assets on the market, or using valuation
methods, including appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models.

Loans to customers: The fair value of issued loans is estimated from the present value of the cash flows, using current
market rates for similar loans. For variable-interest loans that are reviewed regularly and do not vary significantly in terms of

credit risk, the fair value is based on the carrying amount until maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity financial assets: Available-for sale financial assets and held-to-
maturity financial assets are carried at fair value based on available quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not

available, the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models.
Other financial assets: For almost all other financial assets, the carrying amount is a good approximation of the fair value.

Due to other banks: Due to other banks comprise interbank placings, items to be delivered and deposits. The fair values of
floating rate placings and overnight deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed-interest deposits
is based on the present value of the cash flows, calculated using ruling money market interest rates for debts with
comparable credit risks and terms to maturity.

Trade liabilities: The fair value of trade liabilities is based on available quoted market prices. If quoted markes prices are not

available, the fair value is estimated from valuation models (such as discounted cash-flow models).

Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss: The fair value of these liabilities is based on available quoted
market prices, If quoted market prices are not available, the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted cash-flow
models and option valuation models. Other financial liabilities classified at fair value through profit and loss are immune t©
changes in Rabobank’s credit rating.

Due to customers; Due to customers include current accounts and deposits. The fair value of savings and current accounts
that have no specific termination date is assumed to be the amount payable on demand at the balance sheet date, ie.
their carrying amount at that date. The fair value of the deposits is estimated from the present value of the cash flows,
based on current bid rates of interest for similar arrangements with terms to maturity that match the items to be measured.
The carrying amount of variable-interest deposits is a good approximation to their fair value at the balance sheet date,

Debt and other instruments issued by Rabobank: The fair value of these instruments is calculated using quoted market
prices. For notes for which no quoted market prices are available, 2 discounted cash flow model is used, based on a current
vield curve appropriate for the term to maturity.




Other debts: The fair value of loans is estimated from the present value of the cash flows, based on current market rates

for similar loans with terms to maturity that match the outstanding terms of the loans to be measured.

Off-balance-sheet instruments for obligations or guarantees: The fair value of off-balance-sheet instruments for

obligations or guarantees is based on current fees for entering into such arrangemenits, taking into account the

outsianding terms of the agreements and the creditworthiness of the counterparties.

C

2006 2005
In milliens of euros Carrying a-mo_u—nt B Fair value  Carrying amount Fair value
Assets ) - i _1 N '
Cash and cash equivatents ~ ) 1,630 7 1,630 2923 2946
Due from otherbanks 40086 48962 53065 52919
Trading financial assets o 36789 36789 3011 39011
Other financial assets at fair \_.raE &uo}.lgh - 7 7
profit and loss 21,468 21,468 17449 _ 17,449
Derivative financial assets- . 18;992_‘ B 18,992 24,135 24135
Loans to customers o ) 354,9.7;4___ 355312 304,451 - 3z
Available-far-sale financial asseg o 48_.—96_1____ 48,961 ) 48,64@ - 48,644
Held-to-maturity ﬂnanci-al-;sse:;s__ i 1 ,48é o ) 1,562 1,908 ) ) 2,054
Total assets B 533339 533676 491586 498575
Liabilities N o -
Due to other banks ) 11 3,641_&_ ) 113,200 109,749 _ 108,721
Due to customers o 215,8_99 o 215,977 186427 185,514
Debt securities inissue 128066 127,469 115992 116227
Derivatives and other trade liabilities 26,&94 26,6594 31,182 i 31,82
Other financial Iiabilitieé atrfair vz;ue S -
through profit and lass o 26,270 26,270 23,844 o 23844
Subordinated debt 2450 2454 2645 2573
Total liabilities B 513,023 512,064 469835 468,061

The above stated figures represent the best possible estimates by management, based on a range of methods and

assumptions. If a quoted market price is available, this is the best estimate of fair value. If no quoted market prices are

available for fixed-term securities, equity instruments, derivative financial instruments and commodity instruments,

Rabobank bases the fair value on the present value of the future cash flows, discounted at market rates corresponding

to the credit ratings and terms to maturity of the investments, Alternatively, a model-based price can be used to determine

a suitable fair value.

Rabobank's policy is to have all models used for valuing financial instruments validated by expert staff who are

independent of the staff who determine the fair values of the financial instruments.




In determining market or fair values, various factors have to be considered, such as the time value of money, volatility,
underlying options, warrants and derivative financial instruments. Other factors are liuidity and the creditworthiness of
the counterparty. Modifications te assumptions might affect the fair value of held-for-sale and available-for-sale financial
assets and liabilities.

The table below summarizes the valuation methods used in determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities
except from current financial instruments, receivables and payables arising in the normal course of business. Due to the
relatively short time between their initial recognition and expected realisation, the carrying amounts of these items are a
good approximation cf their fair values.

Measurement of financial instruments

2006 2005
In millions of euros Fair value % Fair value Uty
At 31 December _ 7 {
Quoted ma‘rket prices 163,298 16 209,542 22
Valuation methods based on assumptions
fully supported by demonstrable market
prices or rates {_382,442 84 757094 78

48 Trust activities
Rabobank provides fiduciary, trustee, corporate accounting, and asset management services, as well as advisory services
third parties, as part of which it has to make decisions on the allocation, purchase and sale of a wide variety of financial

instruments. Assets held in connection with fiduciary activities are not disclosed in these financial statements. For some of
the arrangements, Rabobank has zgreed to achieve yield targets for the assets under its management. With these serviceJ
Rabobank could be exposed to the risk of being held liable for inadeguate management or performance.

5 Business segments

The business segments the Rababank uses in its reporting are defined from a management viewpaint. This means they are
the segments reviewed as part of Rabobank’s strategic management and for the purpose of making business decisions.
Rabobank distinguishes five major business segments; Domestic retail banking, Wholesale and international retail banking,
Asset management and investment, Leasing and Real Estate.

The domestic retail banking' business segment covers mainly the core activities of the local Rabobanks and Obvion,
Wholesale banking services are focused on the food & agri business, Telecom, Media & Internet and Trade & Cammaodity
Finance. Rabobank’s international retail activities are developed in the regions Europe, North and Scuth America, Australia
and New Zealand, as well as Asia. In addition, clients are served via three Internet banks. Rabobank's asset management
core activities are administered by Robeco Group, Bank Sarasin, Schretlen & Co and Alex Beleggershank, and its leasing
activities are covered by De Lage Landen. De real estate division, under its new name Rabo Bouwfonds, includes FGH Bank,
Rabo Vasigoed and parts of Bouwfonds.




The other business activities of Rabobank comprise a variety of segments, none of which requires separate reporting.

Inter-segment transactions are conducted in accordance with normal commercial terms and market conditions.

No other material income or expense items arise between business segments. The assets and liabilities of a segrment

comprise operating assets and operating hakilities, in other words, a substantial part of the balance sheet, but excluding

items relating to tax.

The accounting policies used for segment reporting are the same as those described in the section on the main

accounting policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Wholesale Asset
banking and management
Domaestic international and Real
In millions of euros retail banking  retail banking investment Leasing Estate Other* Total
For the year ended
31 December 2006 B
External incpme 7 _ 7,73! _7 . _],582 894 ) l,__’:qil 492 (1,954) ~ 10,04?
Income from other segments {2,180} 1,040 (Sé)r 7 (462} (248) 1,9d8 -
Total income o 5,551 o 2,6_22 ‘836f _ _?4_42 244 (46)_:_ 10,059
Segment expense o 4,016‘ . 1,820 551 - 571 100 279 7,337
Operating profit before tax 1,535 802 285 271 144 (325) 2,712
Income tax exp;en;te——-A o 444 115 62 . 65 40 (359)-_ 367
Net profit for ti'le yei;'__ o 1,001 - 687 223 o _gq& _ 104 _ 34 :_ N 2_,345
Businessunitassets 242380 403554 18894 24765 17,069 (153,457) 553205
Investments in a§sociat§5 12 460 1" - 1" 56 2,?0d B 3,250
Total assets o 242,392 f}g{l,OM 18,905 24,776 17,125 (150,757) ) 556,455
Business unit Iiabi[itiers_ri 226,552 7394,688‘7_ 7 17,238 22,670 16,377 (150,447) _ 527,078
Total liabilities 226,552 394,688 17,238 . 22,670 7 16,377 (150,447) 527,078
Additions to proﬁe_l:tg o o - )
and equipment ) B 142 48 8 2,855 195 12 3,260
Depreciation andr - N 7
amortisation including
amortisation of software 152 5 non 3 103 341
Value adjustments 139 234 - 7 (m 1 450
* Including elimination between segments for profit and loss account.




Wholesale Asset
banking and management
Domestic international and Real
In millions of euros retail banking  retail banking investment Leasing Estate Other* Total
For the year ended
31 December 2005 |
External income 7719 1,399 784 1,073 302 {1,914} 9,3(13
Income from other segments (2,288) 827 (66) (354) {152) 2,033 ’-
Total income 5,431 2,226 718 719 150 19 9363
Segment expense 3,910 1,536 4568 484 42 319 6,7&{9
Operating profit before tax 1,521 690 250 235 108 (200} 2,6[54
Incame tax expense 497 117 7;6 57 30 (256) SZ_II
Net profit for the year 1,024 573 174 178 78 56 2,053
Business unit assets 219,777 368,147 141 7-9 20,757 9,101  (128,359) 503,6(;2
Investments in associates 15 215 154 4 18 2,565 2971
Total assets 219,792 368,362 14,333 20,761 9119 (125794) 506,573
Business unit liabilities 205141 359,787 13,546 19,262 8496 (126,008} 480,224
Total liabilities 205141 359,787 1 3,5{6 19,262 8,496 (126,008} 480,2i4
Additions to property and
equipment 115 40 1A6 10 4 222 407
Depreciation and
amortisation including
amortisation of software 164 40 13 15 [ 98 N
Value adjustments 175 259 - 92 1 (10} 517

* Including elimination between segments for profit and loss account.




Additions

to property,

Contingent
liabilities and

obligations

Income from equipment and  (including revocable
In millions of euros Assets Liabilities external clients intangible assets commitments})
At 31 December 2006 i i
The Netherlands 341,455 328,832 9,634 2,257 48,834
Other countries in the EU zone 29,373 14,010 1,069 864 N 4,710
Rest of Europe (excl. EU zone) 7 73,952 64,b63 802 34 ) 8,186
North America 72,168 82,005 424 203 . 9,174
Latin America 5,363 2,370 298 1 ) 692
Asia 8.145 14,901 i 7 19 1 2413
Australia 25,999 18,467 226 78 3,528
Other and consolidation effects - 2,430 - (2,423) 570 -
Total 556,455 527,078 10,049 4,008 77,537
- Contingent
Additions liabilities and
to property, obligations
Income from equipmentand  (including revocable
In millions of euros Assets Liabilities  external clients intangible assets commitments)
At 31 December 2005 o B
The Netherlands i A 51-0,308 304,064_ - 8,785 3in _ ) 44,285
Other countries in the EU zone ) 24,092 -9,764~ v _ 907 (15) ) 4,326
Rest of Europe (excl. EU zone} 77,272 65,375 7 723 9 X 6,333
North America 56,133 72,615 407 69 B 9,599
Latin America ) - 4,-612 2,681 S ‘232 5. _ 367
Asia 7.869 13,861 o (32) 2 _ 1524
Australia N 26,268 12795 229 5 2484
Other and consolide‘\tion_ eﬁécts_ ) 7 19 (351) (1,888) 21 -
Total 7 506,573 480,224 o 9,363 407 B 68,898




6 Cash and cash equivalents

[«

In millions of euros 2006 2005
I
|

Cash 870 675

Money market loans 39 &7

Deposits at central banks other than mandatory reserve deposits 355 1,728

Cash and cash equivalents 1,264 2,46F

Mandatory reserve deposits at central banks 366 458

1,630 2923

Total cash and cash equivalents

Mandatory reserve deposits consist of deposits with De Nederlandsche Bank (the Dutch central bank) required under its
minimum reserve policy. These depasits are not available to Rabobank for use in its daily business activities.

7 Due from other banks

It millions of euros 2006 2005
Deposits with other banks 10,965 13,387
Assets transferred under repurchase transactions 35,790 36,75;9
Loans 2,362 2,983
Other i 7 N
Less: value adjustments i (48) (64)
Total due from other banks 49,086 53,06_-‘5
Ereakdown of value adjustments

At 1 January B 64 62
Additional value adjustment to due from other banks 3 16
Reversal of value adjustment to d_u_e_f_rom other banks (26) (5)
Value adjustments ) (23) L
Amounts written off during the year - -
Other changes 7 1
At 31 December _ 48 @{4

C




8 Trading financial assets

) _ ) ) 2_0[?6 2005_ )
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Purchased loans - 208 2089 C2s5 2255
Short-term government securities 187 543 730 275 - 275
Government bonqs ) 7 5,056 112 - 5,162 10436 262 ) 10,698
Other debt securities - - 19,408 ) 216 19,624 15,828 7_93 ) 16,621
Equity inst_ruments _ i 3,866 l 1,882 ) 5,742 2,349 _ 2,3427 4,651
Other financial assets ) ) ) 3,410 62 3,472 4,211 260 4471
Total ) ) _ 31,915 4,874 36,789 33099 5912 39011

r - |

9 Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

) . ) 2006 ) 2005
In million; of euro; 7 7 Listed Unlisted Tdtal Listed Unlisted Total
Short-term government securities B _ 42 ) ;2 ] - _41: 4
Governmt;.nt bonds k _; . 170 L ?;11 794 299 - 1.093
Other deét securities ) _ . _— 13,426 - 16 13442 171 021 173{ 11,794
Venture capital _ - 4 o281 285 A 221 225
Equity instruments ) 3460 2,346 5,806 - 2236 2578 4814
QOther financial as;s_ets o i N 1,571 11 1,582 75 7 82
T;)ta| o ) 18,63}_ 2,837 21,468 14,130 35319 17,449

— ]

10 Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities

10.1 Types of derivative instruments used by Rabobank

Forward currency and interest rate contracts are contraciual obligations to receive or pay a net amount based on
movements in exchange or interest rates, or to purchase or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a future date
at a fixad specified price in an organised financial market. As collateral for forward contacts is provided in the form of cash,
cash equivalents or marketable securities, and movements in the value of forwarc contracts are seitled daily, the credit risk
is negligible.

Forward rate agreements are individually agreed forward interest rate contracts under which the difference between a
contractually agreed interest rate and the market rate on a future date has to be settled in cash, based on a notional

principal amount.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps enitail an
aconomic exchange of currencies or interest rates (such as a fixed rate for one or more variable rates, or 8 combination
i.e, a cross-currency swap). Except for certain currency swaps, there is no transfer of the principal amount. The credit risk




exposure of Rabobank represents the potential cost of replacing the swaps if the counterparties defauft. The risk is
monitered centinuously against current fair value, 2 pertion of the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity
of the markets. As part of the credit risk management process, Rabobank employs the same methods for evaluating
counterparties as it dees for lending activities.

Currency and interest rate options are contracts under which the seller (known as the writer) gives the buyer (known as
the holder) the right, entailing no obligation, to purchase {in the case of a call option} or sell (in the case of a put option) a
specific amount of foreign currency or a specific financial instrument on or before an agreed date or during an agreed
period at a price set in advance. As consideration for accepting the currency or interest rate 7isk, the writer receives a

payment (known as a premium) from the holder. Options are traded on exchanges or between Rabobank and clients (OTC).

Rabobank is exposed to credit risks only as option holder and only up to the carrying amount, which is equal to the fair
value in this case.

Credit default swaps (CDSs) are instruments by means of which the seller of a CDS agrees to pay the buyer an amount

equal to the loss that would be incurred by holding an underlying reference asset if a specific credit event were to occur
(i.e. the materialisation of a risk). The buyer is under no obligation to hold the underlying reference asset. The buyer pays
the seller a credit protection fee expressed in basis points, with the size of the fee depending en the credit spread of the

reference asset.

10.2 Derivative financial instruments issued or held for trading

Rabobank trades in financial instruments to take positions in tradeable or OTC instruments, including devivative financial
instruments, so that it can profit from short-term movements on share and bond markets and in exchange and interast
rates, Far this type of trading, Rabobank sets risk limits relating to market pasitions at the end of the day (overnight trades)
as well as during the day (intraday trades). Apart from specific hedging rutes, the currency and interest raie risks associated
with these derivative financial instruments are usually offset by taking counter positions in order to manage the volatility in
the net cash or cash equivalent amounts needed 1o liquidate the market positions.

Derivative financial instruments held as hedges

Rabobank concludes varicus derivative contracts that are intended as fair value, cash flow or net investment hedges, and
which accordingly qualify as such. Rabobank alse concludes derivative contracts as hedges against economic risks. It does
not apply hedge accounting to these contracts.

Fair value hedges
Most of Rabobank's fair value hedges are interest rate and cross currency swaps that provide protection against a potential
decrease in the fair value of fixed-interest financial assets or a potential increase in the fair value of clients' time deposits in
local as well as foreign currencies. The net fair value of these swaps at 31 December 2006 was -287 (2003: -3,757).




Rabobank hedges part of its currency risk exposure relating to available-for-sale shares with fair value hedges in the form of
currency futures contracts. The net fair value of these forward currency contracts at 31 December 2006 was -467 (2005:-7).

For the year ended 31 December 2006, Rabobank recognised 2 gain of 26 (2005: loss of 26) on the portion of the fair value
hedges classified as ineffective.

Cash flow hedges
Rabobank makes almost no use of cash flow hedges,

Net investment hedges

Rabobank uses forward currency contracts to hedge part of the translation risk on net investments in foreign entities.

At 31 December 2006, forward contracts with a total notional amount of 3,138 (2,922) were classified as net investment
hedges. These contracts produced gains totalling 115 (2005: losses169), which were recognised in equity. No deductions
from equity were made during the year (0).

10.3 Notional amount and fair value

Although the notional amount of certain types of financial instruments provides a basis for comparing instruments that
are included on the balance sheet, it does not necessarily represent the related future cash flows or the fair values of the
instrurnents. Hence, it does not represent the exposure of Rabobank to credit or exchange risks. The notienal amount is
the value of the underlying asset or reference rate or index of a derivative financial instrument and forms the basis for
measuring changes in the value of such instruments. It provides an indication of the volume of transactions executed by
Rabobank; it is not a measure of risk exposure, however. Some derivative financial instruments are standardised in terms of
notional amount or settlement date, having been designed for trading on active markets (i.e. on stock exchanges). Others
are specifically constructed for individual clients and not for trading on an exchange, even though they can be traded at
nrices negotiated by buyers and sellers (OTC instrurnents;).

A positive fair value represents the cost for Rabobank to replace all contracts on which it will be entitled to receive payment.
Replacement would apply in the event of all counterparties remaining in default. This is the standard method in the
industry for calcutating the current credit risk exposure, A negative fair value represents the cost for Rabobank to replace all
contracts on which it will have to make payment. Replacement would apply in the event of Rabobank remains in default.
The total of positive fair values and the total of negative fair values are disclosed separately in the balance sheet. Derivative
financial instruments are favourable {if passive) or not favourable (if nat passive) as a result of swings in market or exchange
rates in refation io their contract values. The total contract or noticnal amount of derivative financial instruments held, the
degree to which these instruments are favourable ar not favourable, and hence the total fair value of the derivative
financial assets and liabilities can sometimes fluctuate significantly.

The table below shows the notional amounts and the positive and negative fair values of Rabobank's derivative contracts

(including those relating to closed derivative positions / embedded derivative financial instruments).




Contract/

In millions of euros Notional amount Fair value

“ . Assets Liabilitiés
At 31 December 2006
Derivative ﬁnan_cial instruments held for trading ) 2,13519 17,751 20,373
Derivative financial instruments held as hedges 58,450 1,241 1,992
Short positions shares and bonds - - 4,326
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities recognised 2193641 18,992 26,695
Derivative financial instruments held_ for trading )
Currency derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Forward currency contracts 48,298 691 78?
Currency swaps 166,559 - 2,719 ' 3,97£
Currency options ) 5.083 44 412
Listed tradeable contracts i
Currency futures 620 - l—
Options - 5 16
Total currency derivative financial inst-ruments 220,560‘ 3,459‘ 4,81 5
Interest rate dérivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC) i ‘
Interest rate swaps 7 :'I 441,122 _ 10,400 11,754
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 675 81 10%
Forward rate agreements - 87759 50 29
Interest rate options 145,447 1.547 1,52(;
Total OTC contacts ‘1,675,003 ] 12,078 1341 1'




Contract/

In_ millions of euros Notional amount Fair value )

Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2006 o _
Listed tradeable contracts o
Interest rate swaps 171,007 8 5
'I_'ota} interest rate derivative financial instruments 1,846,010 12_,08_6 B ) 13_,41 6
Credit derivative financial instruments o A ,
Credit default swaps 31,657 292 3 336
Total return swaps 19,571 135 223
Total credit derivative financial instruments 51,228 427 . 559
Equity instruments/index derivative financial o )
instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC}
Options 8,110 - 1“,1—1-4— o ) i,581
Listed tradeable contracts 7 :; B
Futures - T m - -
thions 6,336 584 -
Total equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments 15,168 1,698 1,581
(_)_ther derivati_ve financial an—str:n;;ts o o 72,72;57 o 81 -
Total derivative financial e;;s_et_sfliabilities_held
for trading 2,135,191 17,751 20373
Derivative financial instruments held as ﬁedges
Derivative financial instruments classified as ) - )
fairvaluehedges
Currency swaps o 774,7446 o 31 o 498
Interest rate swaps o - 53,679 1,193 1,474
ac;;s-currency interest rate swapg— - - 325 17 23
Total derivative financial instruments classified i
as fair value hedges 58,450 L4 ) 1,995
Derivative financial instruments classified as cash o )
flow hedges
interest rate swaps . ) -
Total derivative financial assets/liabilities classified
as hedges B 5_!_3,@ 1,241 _19_95




In millions of euros

Contract/

Notional amount

T
Liabilities

At 31 December 2005 B

Derivative financial instruments held as hedges
Derivative financial instruments classified as fair

value hedges

Forward currency contracts

Currency swaps

Interest rate options

Interest rate swaps

Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Total derivative financial instruments classified as

fair value hedges

Derivative financial instruments classified as cash

flow hedges

Interest rate swaps

Total derivative financial instruments classified as
cash flow hedges

Total derivative financial assets/liabilities held

as hedges

s1
1129
5536
29,762
7,246

43,724

36

36

43,760

4,3i1 0

11 Loans to customers

In millions of euros

Loans initiated by Rabobank:

Loans to government clients:
Leasing
Other

Receivables relating to securities transactions

Loans to private clients:
Overdrafts
Mortgages

Leasing

Receivables relating to securities transactions
Other

Gross loans to customers

Less: changes in loans to customers

Total loans to customers

C




Contract/

In mitlions of eurcs Notional amount Fair value

7 Assets Liabilities
At 31 Becember 2006
Listed tradeable contracts N )
Interest rate swaps 171,007 8 5
Total interest rate derivative ﬁnanci_al instruments 1,846,010 12,086 13_.41 6
Credit derivative financial instruments _
Credit default swaps 31,657 292 336
Total return swaps 19,571 135 223
Total credit derivative financial instruments i 51,228 427 559
Equity instruments/index derivative financial _
instruments ~ i _
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC) )
QOptions o A o ___‘__ B ) o 8,110 1,11_4 B '1,581
Listed tradeable contracts )
Futures - S _:j 22 o j - o -
Options 6336 584 .
Total equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments 15,168 ) 1,698 1,581
C_)tr;er de;ivative financial instruments - 2,225 o 81 -
{ota] der;v;tive ﬁnancia] a;et;lliabilities held
for trading 2,135,191 1 7,75_1 20,373
Derivative financial instriuments held as hedges ) )
Derivative financial instrumeﬁts classified as
fair value hedges o o
C_urrency swaps 4,446 . 3 498
I-n-te_m;t rate swaps ] 53,679 1,193 1,474
&ross—_currency interest ra'te_swaps 325 17 23
Total derivative financial instruments classified
as fair value hedges 58,450 1,241 1,995
Derivative financial instruments classified as cash
fiow hedges o B
Interest rate swaps - - -
Total derivativé ﬁnancial assets/liabilities classified
as hedg_es 58450 1,241 1,995




Contract/
In millians of euros Notional amount Fair value

Assets Liabilities

At 31 December 2005

Derivative financial instruments held for trading 2,029,668 23,588 23,77-'
Derivative financial in;truments held as hedges 43,760 547 4,310
Short positions shares and bonds - - 3,101
Total derivative financia_l assets/liabilities recognised 2,073,428 : 24,135 31,182

Derivative financial instruments held for trading
Currency derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)

Forward currency contracts 219,249 _ 2,497 2,4553
Currency swaps 4,326 362 424
Currency options 6,871 6 7
Listed tradeable contracts ) .

Options ) 31 - 7
Total currency derivatiﬁe financial instruments 230497 2,865 293

Interest rate derivative financial instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)

Interest rate swaps 1,128,741 t 14,582 15,560
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 63,340 2,040 1,383
Forward rate agreements 7 209,925 45 5tS
Interest rate options 120,935 1,688 1,738
Total OTC contracts o 1.522,941: 18,355 18,6?6



Contract/

n milliqns_qf_egr_o‘s o Notional amount Fair value .

7 7 7 - 7 Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2005 o - )
.Tis}‘etj| trgdeable ;:ont;acts e o )
Interast rate-futures S N S 226942 o i - 7 h - 13
Total interest ra_t_-e g.c_\_ri\_rative_fina_m_:i?l_ irl_s_t_;-unjeptg- i 1_,749,883 ) 18,362 ) 18_,689
Crédit derivati\;e finén‘cigl instru_m;zn-t-s—- o ) :
Credit default swaps i o —_ 7_ B . _ - 55,452 7 398 321
Total return swaps “14,311 S - 151 ‘ ) 126
Total credit derivétfv_e %iﬁérn_ci:'arluinitnirpgriti L : 7 ;fﬁ 39,763 549 _ i 447
Precious metal contracts - S - )
Unlisted rradeab-{é cor;{;'r-zct_s-(aTC) S o - - - - -
Forward contracts T S 4 - - -
Total precious metal contracts - 4- - -
Equity instruments/index derivative financial
instruments
Unlisted tradeable contracts (OTC)
Options 6,383 71 1,704
Listed tradeable contracts
Futures 168 - -
Options 2,927 1,656 -
Total equity instruments/index derivative financial -
instruments 9,478 1,727 1,704
Other derivati;(e vf’_Ee;rLcﬁl'}‘I_in;tr_u_rrnieE\_tsA__ - o 43 - 8-5 ) -
Total dérivativéﬁnancial7assie;tslliabrilit;a§ I{eld - -
for trading 2,029,668 23,588 23,771




Contract/

In_mi]lions ofgurgs o o ___ Notional amount Fairvalue o ..
7 o Assets Liabilties
At 31 December 2005 S o o i .
Derlvatlve f“nanclal_lnstrqrﬁe_nt;-l;elti;; hedg-esv - S :; o )
Derivative financial instruments classified as fair ) - B i
value hedges 7 o ) i i o ..
Forward currency céqtracts - 51 - ) - L
Currency swaps o ~ 1,1297 e o 7
Interest rate options ~ B ~ - 5,5367 - . -
Interest rate swaps S 29,762 o 448 3,9%1
Cross-currency |nterest rate swaps v 7,246 98 352
Total derivative financial mstrumen-t; c-lassmed as
fair value hedges . = 7 .. -] 4,310
I o e B} ..
Derlvatlve fmancua| instruments cIassufled as cash
flow hedges ) e "
Interest rate swaps ) __7_—_ o 36l B 71 -
Total derivative fmanc;al |nst;'|;1|_1\ent.s cla55|f|-ec;-a;- )
cash ﬂow hedges ) 36 1 -
Total derivative flh;;;l;;;;tsﬂlabllltléS held
as hedges o _ . 43760 547 4310
11 Loans to customers
In mllllt;ns-of euﬁ;; N - . - —-2—006 _ 2503
I;oans a-nlvt:a;;cvl I;y Rabobank _;_ : _ T_—___— _'__ ) o t:i _:- o 'i o ; _: ) J_Mj
Loans to governmentcents: ol o
Leasing o . £ ___Z
'—(-)iher o - 7-—'_ S i : - 2619 1046
Recewables relatlag-;c; S‘E-C[J:’Itl.es tra?lsactlons ;7__7 j ) o :_ o j B -i j;v i ) 1,4_52
Loans to private c_Ile_n_ts_.__ B o ~ B S ) _
Overdrafts 9,098 ~ 779,2?0
Mortgages ey 070
. _ Leasing 7;_;_____ o S f;—’ 15943 L _14_,412_
~ Receivables relatlng to securities transactions o f . 2839% 2203
Other o - 79,606 57,818
Gross loans to customers o _ ) o i_ : o ; B 357173 3@6,898
Less: changes in Ioans to-c[l;;o-mérs B ij_ i (2,249) ) (2357)
Total loans to customers . i S 354,924 ) 304,4%1




In millions of euros 2006 2005
Value adjustments in loans to customers i

Value adjustmep}s in loans ta customers can be broken down as follows: ] o

At 1 January 2,357_ 2017
Additional value adjustment for credit losses 667 826
Reversal of value adjustment for credit losses (172) 1)
Defaulting loans written off during the year (517} (364)
Other changes o . ] (86) 129
Total value adjustments in loans to customers 2,249 2,357
Finance leases

Loans to customers also includes receivables from finance leases, which can be broken down as foilows;

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Receivables from gross investment in finance leases: i o B
Shorter than 1 year ] ) ) o 6,724 o 3852
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 11,364 i 9494
Longer than 5 years ] ] 7 7 372 394
Total receivables from gross investment in finance leases 18,460 15,740
Unearned deferred finance income from finance leases 2,264 1,450
Net investment in fin_ance leases B B 16,196 i 14,250
Net investment in finance leases can be broken down as follows: 7

Shorter than 1 year . ) ) - ) 5,574 B 5317
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 10,287 8610
Longer than 5 years ) i _ i 335 363
Net investment in finance leases 16,196 14,250

The provision for finance leases included in value adjustments amounted to 221 at 31 December 2006 (189).




12 Available-for-sale financial assets

']

2006 2005
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Loans granted - - - - 2,240 2,240
Short-term government securities 1,052 20 1,072 713 55 768
Government bonds 18,701 6,723 25,424 20714 3,943 24657
QOther debt instruments 5,654 14,060 19,714 8,188 7611 15,769
Equity instruments 322 1,341 1,663 155 4461 4616
Other available-for-sale financial assets 968 120 1,088 407 157 564
Total available-for-sale financial assets 26,697 22,264 48,961 30177 18,467 48,644
Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets:
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Derecognised available-for-sale financial assets 7 38
The changes in available-for-sale financial assets can be broken down as follows:
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Opening balance 48,644 48,321
Translation differences on monetary assets (2,588) 2,225
Additions 15919 13,667
Disposals (sale and redemption) (12,151) (15,218)
Gains / (losses) from changes in fair value (528) 88
Value adjustments (279) {120
Other changes (56) (319)
Closing balance 48,961 48,644




13 Held-to-maturity financial assets

[«

2006 2005
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Government bonds 1,187 - 1,187 1,580 - 1,580
QOther debt instruments 302 - 302 328 - 328
Total held-to-maturity financial assets 1,489 - 1,489 1,908 - 1,908
The changes in held-to-maturity financial assets can be broken down as follows:
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Opening balance 1,908 2,207
Additions 456 241
Disposals (sale and redemption) (856) {527}
Value adjustments (19) (13)
Closing balance 1,489 1,508
14 Investments in associates
in millions of euros 2006 2005
Opening balance 2,971 714
Purchases - 2377
Sales (5) (93]
Share of profit of associates 469 98
Dividends paid 211) (77
Associates included in consolidation (166)
Revaluation and other 192 (139)
Total 3,250 297

I




15 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Software
developed Insurance Other

In millions of euros Goodwill in-house portfolio intangible assets Total
Year ended 31 December 2006 ) i ﬁ

Net opening carrying amount 154 84 14 - 252
Foreign exchange differences _ 3 . - - :3
Additions 942 1 -_78 5 480 1,605
Acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries -47 1 - 76 1324
Other (90) 6 ) - - (8;1)
Amortisation - (61) (3) (2) (66}
Net closing carrying amount 1,056 218 . 16 554 1,84_4
Cost 11056 468 - 50 5561 ) 2,07:0
Accumulated depreciatic;n - * (190} (34) {2) (226)
Net carrying amount 1,056 218 . 16 554 1,84:1
Year ended 31 December 2005 o i i _ .

Net opening carrying amount nz2 76 ) 16 - 20:1
Foreign exchange differences 3 - ) - s (Ii)
Additions 42 85 3 - 130
Acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries 3 (3?) _ - - (3%)
Other - 7 - - 7
Amortisation . - (47) (5} - (s2)
Net closing carrying amount 154 84 . 14 - 25?
Cost 154 21-3 o 45 —_-_' 4li2
Accumulated amortisa_tion - {1 2;9) (31 - {160)
Net carrying amount 154 84 . 14 - 252

[«

-

Rabobank makes limited use of fully amortised software and other intangible assets. The main acquisitions in 2006 were




Rabobank makes limited use of fully amortised software and other intangible assets. The main acquisitions in 2006 were
Central Coast Bancorp (USA), Bouwfonds, Athlon and Bank Sarasin (Switzerland). They are included in the table below.

C |

Acquired and

Acquisition  Acquisition recognised
In millions of euros date price Fair value Goodwill  intangible assets
Year ended 31 December 2006 o ____ ) ] o :_ o
CentralCéast Bancorp (USA) , - i 017-92-72_6061 273 857 188 “7 - oo
Bouwfonds - 01-12-2006 855 593 %2 1
Athlon - o ﬁ01-07-2006 7 i 586 222 364 o 7!13
Bank Sarasin (Switzerland) - Expansion of share  29-12-2006 277 178 9 a5
Subtotal - 1,991 1,078 913 539
Other - T . 2; - 77{7
thal ) h _7_-_———_ o 942 556

[ |

The goodwill is attributable to synergy benefits that cannot ke separately identified and intangible assets {brand name and
customer portfalio) that have been included in goodwill because the relevant amounts are minor. These acquisitions are
important strategic steps for Rabobank and contribute directly to Rabobank profit. Goodwill is allocated to cash flow-
generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. These cash flow-generating units represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored. No impairments of goodwill were identified in 2006 since recoverable amounts exceed
carrying values.

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of the acquired entities largely correspond to the fair values first recognised in
the financial statements of the Rabobank. The main differences concern separate newly-valued intangible asseis (brand names,
customer portfolio and so on for 550 mitlion) and an upward revaluation of property, plant and eguipment of 150 million,
The contribution of the newly acquired entities to profit for 2006 from the date of their acquisition amounts to 50 million.

If the acquired entities had been consolidated for the full year, their contribution to the profit of Rabobank would have
been 55 million, net of financing charges.




16 Property and equipment

In millions of euros Land and buildings Equipment Total
Year ended 31 December 2006

Net opening carrying amounts 1,880 1,235 31 ;5
Foreign exchange differences (5) {16) (2j)
Purchases 196 - 604 800
Acquisition of subsidiaries 58 - 2,402 2.480
Disposals (103) 7 (471) (57;1)
Depreciation (85) 7 (190} (275)
Other (74) - {409) (485)
Net closing carrying amount 1,867 3,155 5,022
Cost 3,187 ) 5422 8,6(59
Accumulated depreciation (1,320} (2,267) 7 (3,587)
Net carrying amount 1,867 3,155 5.022
In millions of euros Land and buildings Equipment Tot.al
Year ended 31 December 2005 :

Net apening carrying amount 2,079 ) 1,234 3,313
Foreign exchange differences 8 7 1t5
Purchases 104 246 35;0
Acquisition of subsidiaries 34 - 23 .‘17
Disposals (48) _ (e (64)
Disposal of subsidiaries {201} {51} {252)
Depreciation (104) (190} B (29:1)
Other S 8 _ (18) (IEJ)
Net closing carrying amount 1,880 1,235 31 1‘5
Cost 3,123 - 2,348 5,4;1
Accumulated depreciation (1,243) i (1,113) (2,35;)
Net carrying amount 1,880 1,235 31 1¢5




17 Investment properties

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Net opening carrying amount 768 1,178
Purchases 124 105
Acquisition of subsidiaries 567 -
Sales - (90}
Disposals (135) -
Disposal of subsidiaries - (395)
Other (including depreciation) 14 (30)
Net closing carrying amount 1,338 768
The fair value and carrying amount are practically equal.

Cost 1,475 878
Accumulated depre;iation (137) (110)
Net carrying amount 1,338 768
The maximum remaining maturity of investment properties is 15 (10) years.

18 Other assets

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Receivables and prepayments 1,792 1,522
Assets held for sale 28 22
Accrued interest 2,220 } 1836
Precious metals, goods and warehouse receipts 109 577
Assets in progress 2,900 123
Other assets 2,960 2016
Total other assets 10,009 6,096




19 Due to other banks

[«

+
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Other loans i 7.634 4,868
Money market deposits 455 594
Time deposits 71,618 71920
Other deposits 16,227 11,871
- +
Repurchase agreements 17,710 20,496
Total due to other banks 113,644 109,749
20 Due to customers
In millians of eurcs 2006 2005
Savings 89,500 86,181
- - - +
Current account/settlement accounts 52,446 48,240
Time deposits N 46,346 36,162
Repurchase agreements ) ) 8,107 5,3‘_32
Other due to customers i 19,500 10,452
Total due to customers 215,899 186,427
21 Debt securities in issue
2006 _ 2005
In millions of euros Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total
Certificates of deposit - 22,014 22,014 - 21,814 21,814
Commercial paper - 36812 36812 - 38,07 380N
Bonds ) 63,373 3,900 67,273 _50,627 3453 54,080
Other debt securiti_es o 958 1,009 1,967 1,468 555 2,027
Total debt securities illisrsue 64,331 63,735 128,966 52,085 63,897 115,992

—




22 Other debts

[ 1

in millions of euros 2006 2005

Dividends payable i i 92 . &

Payables _ 7 5410 3358

Accrued intgres; - 3,089 2,242
Qther - 2,058 1,397
'I:otql other det!ts_ o . i0B4 7,066

23 Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

In millions of euros 2006 2005

Bonds . __ 20,795 21812

O}h’errdebt securities 5,194 1,661

Tj{nidegqrits 281 _ 271
26,270 23,844

Total other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss




24 Provisions

Rabobank recognised the following provisions during the year:

In millions of euros 2006 2005
- +
Restructuring provision 385 3:13
Legal issues provision 375 199
R +
Other 415 389
Total provisions 1,175 931
Restructuring provision -
Opening balance i , o 343 326
interest ) o 4 +6
Additional provisions recognised in profit and loss 247 155
Used during the year (209) (144)
Closing balance 385 343
Legal issues provision i B o
Opening balance i 199 236
Additional provisions recognised in profitand loss 192 65
Used during the year (16} (102)
Closing balance 375 199
- - +
Other ) S ) ) ] .
Opening balance 7 S B 389 519
Additional provisions recognised in profitandloss 79 19
Used during the year (53} (149)
Closing balance . 415 389
Total provisions ) i 1,175 931
Other includes provisions for loss-making contracts, credit guarantees and tax claims.
Maturity of the Rabobank provisions {excluding provisions for employee benefits and doubtful debits)
In millions of euros Lessthan 1 year  1-5 years More than 5 years Total
At31 December2006 - o .
Maturity of the provisions 761 396 18 1175
. Y i e A A B ; {

—




25 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured for all temporary differences using the fiability’ method and an effective

tax rate of 25.5% (2005: 29.1%). The comparative figures for the previous financial year have been restated to satisfy the
requirements set out in |AS 12 concerning the offsetting of deferred tax assets and liabilities, The restaternent does not

affect equity and profit for the previous financizl year. No deferred tax asset has been recegnised for carry forwarded losses

totalling approximately 400 {400). Changes in the deferred income tax account can be broken down as follows:

C

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets

Opening balance 1,575 1,605
(Charged)/taken to profit and loss

- inrespect of rate changes (5) (44)
- other l 1 - 65
Available-for-sale financial assets

- remeasurement of fair value (10} 28
Foreign exchange differences (43) 58
Acquisition/{disposal) of subsidiaries 2 b
Other (43) (139)
Closing balance 1,477 1,575
Deferred tax liabilities

Opening balance 668 752
Charged/(taken) to profit aﬁd loss 7

- in respect of rate changes 32 (5)
- other 49 -
Available-for-sale financial asséts -(99) 51
Cash flow hedges

- remeasurement of fair value - 10
Foreign exchange differences (10) 12
Acquisition/(disposal) 6f subsidiaries _1 Oé {175)
Other ) 8'8 v 23
Closing balance 668

836

[«




In millions of euros

2006
Deferred tax assets _ A ] ~ o I A i
Pensions and other post-employment benefits S 156 o _ - 4:{37
Value adjustments | ) i 71 47
Othér provisions i i _ ) 255 o ) lél
Hedged client deposits -]-7-4~~w 515
tarry forward losses R 2;0 o 35/‘4
Property and eguipment :“ - v 6 o . (i
Intangible assets ) o 292 o .
AFS reserve ) 3 _ _
Other temporary differences T 278 8
Total deferred tax assets L 1477 1_515
Deferred tax liabilities - _—_——— o ____ o B ) ? j
Pensions and other post-employment benefits _ e __ _ ____- o . ) p_)
Value adjustments, provisions and |osses on financial assets ) ) B -_-: R +_1
Other provisions ) L 28 - -
-Casih flow hedges i L -7 :— o _-“:-ji . _ 11
Hedged client depésits 7 ) ] o ' o - 339
Carry forward Ios;es o i ) ) R j5
Property and equipment i 7 B o nz B L
AFS reserve e Lo
Othe_r temporary differences 422 314
Total deferred tax assets o 8% 6?8
The deferred tax expense relates te the following temporary differences:
in-millions of euros S _5(366 S _206_5
Property and equipment - S ) ; :j- B S (41 - : ) :-§
Pensions and other post-employment beneﬁts_ o - 4 __1
Value adjustments, proyisiéns_and Ir.::ssés on ﬁnancigl assets - Tv ; (! 1)_ o 4
Other provisions - i : - 7_764 o _18
Carry forward losses S @ 534}
Other temporary differences B 36 (20}
Deferred tax expense ) _ 8 (2+6)

Deferred 1ax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax items refate to the same taxation authority.




26 Employee benefits

2005

In miflions of euros 2006

Pension plans 618 N Rt
Other employee benefits _ . 605 599
Total pension liabilities 1223 o 1Ay

C

26.1 Pension plans

Rabcbank has implemented several pension plans covering a significant percentage of its em ployees. Most of the plans are
career average defined benefit plans, some of which are administered by pension funds. The assets of the fund-administered
plans are held independent of Rabobank assets and are managed by the trustees of the funds. These plans are valued each
year by independent actuaries using the method prescribed by IFRS. The most recent actuarial valuations were carried out
at the end of 2006.

The weighted average of the principal actuarial assumptions used in the valation of the provision for defined benefit plans

at 31 December (% per annum) are:

C

2006 2005
Discount rate N 4.6 o __4
Expected salary accrual rate - R N 3 ) o 3
Consumer price inflation (indexation) _ 2.25 2
Expected return on investments 7 ] 56 ) - 5
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Present value of liabilities administered by funds 9,699 9,676
Fair value of plan assets (10,262) (8,739

{563) 937
Present value of liabilities not administered by funds ) - ) ]
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) 1,184 62
Unrecognised past service costs 7 (3) (38)
Net liabilities 618 838




U

In 2003, 1.75 millicn non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities were issued by Rabobank Capital Funding Trust [, Delaware,
a group company of Rababank Nederland. The expected distribution is 5.26% until 31 December 2013, after which the
expected distribution is equal io the three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.6275%. The total proceeds from this issue amounted
10 USD 1,750. As from 31 December 2013, these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date
{once every quarter) after prior written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Nederland issued a variable interest rate loan of 1,000 in 2005, with a quarterly review of the rates.

The subordinated lean of ACC Bank is a loan of 63 bearing interest at a variable rate. The loan matures in 2008.

The subordinated loan of FGH Bank NV consists of three loans, totalling 51. A loan of 10 bearing a current interest rate of
6.25%, inCreasing to 6.75% after five years. The loan matures in 2012. A loan of 40 bearing a fixed rate of interest of 6% and
repayable in 2012, A further loan of 0.7 bearing a variable rate of interest and repayable in 2012,

28 Contingencies and commitments

Credit related liabilities

Credit granting liabilities represent the unused portions of funds authorised for the granting of credit in the form of loans,
guarantees, letters of credit and other lending related financial instruments. Rabobank’s credit risk exposure from credit
granting liabilities consists of potential losses amounting to the unused portion of the autherised funds. The tatal expected
loss is lower than the total unused funds, however, credit granting liabilities are subject to the clients in question continuing
to meet specific standards of creditworthiness, Guarantees represent irrevocable undertakings that, provided certain
conditions are met, Rabobank will make payments on behalf of clients if they are unable to meet their financial obligations
to third parties. Rabobank also accepts credit granting liabilities in the form of credit facilities made available to ensure that

clients' liquidity requirements can be met, but which have not yet been drawn upon.

[ o yon |

In millions of euros

Guarantees T T T T e T
C_r—e_éit granting liabilities __:_ - - B ;_ o 38,_290 - N :ﬁ;_ 323&82
[;tters of credit - o 7 _ : . 7_17,378 N 1,2§§
§thercontingent liabilities _ _——ﬁ 7___7 - B o i ) o 77 o 18
Tgfal credit related and gonti'n_gentliabiliti;es_ B _ ) tk______ B 473¢¢ 40 S:M




26 Employee benefits

[«

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Pension plans 618 838
Other employee benefits 605 599
Total pension liabilities _ 1,223 1,437

26.1 Pension plans

Rabobank has implemented several pension plans covering a significant percentage of its employees. Most of the plans are

career average defined benefit plans, some of which are administered by pension funds. The assets of the fund-administered

plans are held independent of Rabobank assets and are managed by the trustees of the funds. These plans are valued each

year by independent actuaries using the method prescribed by IFRS. The most recent actuarial valuations were carried out

at the end of 2006,

The weighted average of the principal actuarial assurnptions used in the valuation of the provision for defined benefit plans

at 31 December {% per annum) are:

T

2006 2005

Discount rate 46 4
Expected salary accrual rate 3 3
Consumer price inflation (indexation) 2.25 2
Expected return on investments 5.6 5
In miltions of euros 2006 2005
Present value of liabilities administered by funds 9,699 9676
Fair value of plan assets . (10,262} (8,739)
_ (563) 937

Present value of liabilities not administered by funds - 1
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) 1,184 62)
Unrecognised past service costs (3) (38)
Net liabilities 618 838

C

s |




2005

In miflions of euros 2006

Present value of liabilities administered by funds :
Present value of entitlements at 1 January 9,676 8,593
Acquired entitlements 236 -
Interest 414 353
Increase in entitlements during the year 485 35:5
Benefits paid (140} (126}
Transfer of accrued benefits 9 :
Pension plan changes {1 30_9
Deconsolidation effects - (992)
Expected present value of entitlements at 31 December 10,679 8,493
Actuarial result (980) 3,184
Present value of entitlements at 31 December 9,699 9676
Fair value of plan assets :
Fair value of assets at 1 January 8,739 7,829
Acquired plan assets 230 L
Expected income from investments 467 37_6
Premiums 710 947
Benefits paid (140} 1 2{))
Transfer of accrued benefits and costs (10} N
Deconsolidation effects - (904)
Expected fair value of assets at 31 December 9,996 GARES
Actuarial result 266 626
Fair value of assets at 31 December 10,262 8,7%9
Actual income from investments :
Expected income from investments 467 376
Actuarial result 266 656
Actual income from investments 733 1,0(22

[u




The amounts recognised in consolidated profit and loss for the year are as follows:

—

In millicns of euros 2006 2005
Costs based on period of emp!o.yme;xt during the year N 485 355
Interest on liabilities o 414 353
Expected income from plan assets i (467) B (376)
Pension plan changes (2} 271
Past service costs 38 -
Losses / {gains) on discounts / (s;ttlgments) / costs ) o 22 17
Total cost for defined benefit plans 490 620

26.2 Other employee benefits

Other employee benefits mainly comprises early retirement liabilities, the non-active persons scheme and liabilities for future

long-service awards.

27 Subordinated debt

In millions of euros

2006

2005
Trust Preferred Securities | and Il 1,329 1,483
Rabobank Nederland 1,000 B 1,000
ACC Bank 63 63
FGH Bank 51 o 63
Other 7 36
Total subordinated debt 2,450 2,645
Movements in the Trust Preferred Securities | and Il are stated in the table below.
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Trust Preferred Securities | and I} 7
Atr1 January 1,483 3 1,927
Foreign exchange differences and other (154) ) 206
Repayments - (650)
At 31 December 1,329 1,483

C




In 2003, 1.75 million non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities were issued by Rabobank Capiial Funding Trust Il, Delaware,
a group company of Rabobank Nederland. The expected distribution is 5.26% until 31 December 2013, after which the
expected distribution is equal to the three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.6275%. The total proceeds from this issue amounted
to USD 1,750. As from 31 December 2013, these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date
(once every quarter) after prior written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Nederland issued a variable interest rate loan of 1,000 in 2005, with a quarterly review of the rates.

The subordinated loan of ACC Bank is a loan of 63 bearing interest at a variable rate. The loan matures in 2008.

The subordinated loan of FGH Bank NV consists of three toans, totalling 51. A loan of 10 bearing a current interest rate of
6.25%, increasing to 6.75% after five years. The loan matures in 2012. A loan of 40 bearing a fixed rate of interest of 6% and
repayable in 2012. A further loan of 0.7 bearing a variable rate of interest and repayable in 2012,

28 Contingencies and commitments

Credit related liabilities

Credit granting iabilities represent the unused portions of funds authorised for the granting of credit in the form of loans,
guarantess, letters of credit and other lending related financial instruments. Rabobank's credit risk exposure from credit
granting liabilities consists of potential losses amounting to the unused portion of the authorised funds. The total expected
loss is lower than the total unused funds, however, credit granting liabilities are subject to the clients in question continuing
10 meet specific standards of creditworthiness. Guarantees represent irrevocable undertakings that, provided certain
conditions are met, Rabobank will make payments on behalf of clients if they are unable to meet their financial okligations
to third parties. Rabobank also accepts credit granting liabilities in the form of credit facilittes made available to ensure that
clients' liquidity requirements can be met, but which have not yet been drawn upon.

In millions of euros——-w ) S S N 2006 o 200;
Guarantees o 7 . j M::LH . - _::_ _ _- 7,6-94“: - 7 7,02;
Credit granting liabilities ) ) N j o - o 38,290 -7” _ 7_ - 32,282
Letters of credit o I =/ - o123
Other contingent liabilities o o 7 18
Total credit relatég:l and contingent liabilities S 47369 40,S4f

y 1




Liabilities relating to operating leases
Rabooank has taken on various operating lease contracts as lessee. The future net minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases can be broken down as follows:

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Shorter than 1 year ) o 9 o 7
Longer than one year th not Ionﬁge_:llhgn fjve years o o 20 . 13
Longer than 5 years L o o 16 -
Total liabilities r_e!ating to operating Ieasc_.hs o , - B 45 o 20
Payments receivable from operating leases

Rabobank has taken on various operating lease contracts as lessor. The future net minimum lease payments receivable
from non-cancellable operating leases can be broken down as follows:

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Earlier than 1 year %339 77
Later than one year but not later than five years L i 1487 %
Later than 5 years 180 99
Total payments receivable from operating I_gie_s ) 3,006 1171

C




Rabobank Member Certificates

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Changes during the year: _ o )

Opening p_alance ) i ) B o 581 3840
Rabobank Member Certificates issued and Earncelled during the year (3) 1,971

Closing balance

5,808 5811

31 Trust Preferred Securities lll to Vl issued by group companies

In 2004, four tranches of non-cumulative variable-interest shares/Trust Preferred Securities were issued.

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust I, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 1.50 million non-cumulative
Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is 5.254% until 21 October 2016. For the period 21 October 2016 to
31 December 2016 inclusive, the expected distribution is equal to the USD LIBOR intespolated for the period, plus 1.5900%.
The trust has the right not to mike a distribution, Thereafter, the expected distribution is equa! to the three-month USD
LIBOR plus 1.5900%. The tctal proceeds from this issue amounted to USD 1,500 million. As from 21 October 2016, these
Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once a quarier) after prior wriiten
approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust IV, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 350 thousand non-
cumulative Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is 5.556% until 31 December 2019, after which the
expected distribution is equal to the six-month GBP LIBOR plus 1.4600%. The trust has the right not to make a
distribution. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to GBP 350 million. As frem 31 December 2019, these

Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once every half-year) after prior

written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank,

Rabiobank Capital Funding Trust V, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 250 thousand non-
cumulative Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus 0.6700% until

31 December 2014 inclusive, after which the expected distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus 1.6700%.

The trust has the right not to make a distribution. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to AUD 250 million.

As from 31 December 2014, these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once
a quarter) after prior written approval is received from De Nederlandsche Bank.

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust VI, Delaware, a group company of Rabobank Nederland, issued 250 thousand non-
cumulative Trust Preferred Securities. The expected distribution is 6.415% until 31 December 2014, after which the
expected distributicn is equal 1o the three-month BBSW plus 1.6700%, The trust has the right not to make & distribution.
The total proceeds from this issue amounted to AUD 250 million. As from 31 December 2014, these Trust Preferred
Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date (which is once a quarter) after prior written approval is received

from De Nederlandsche Bank.




—

A distribution becomes due on the Trust Preferred Securities issued in 1999 and 2003 included under subordinated loans If:
{i) the most recently audited and adopted consolidated financial statements of Rabobank Nederland show that
Rabobank Group realised a net profit (after tax and extraordinary expenses) in the previous year, or
(i) a distribution is made on securities that are more subordinated (such as Rabobank Member Certificates and
Rabobank Member Certificates il) or on securities of equal rank (pari passu); subject to the proviso that no distribution
becomes due should the De Nederlandsche Bank object {(for example, if Rabobank's solvency ratio is below 8%).
The condition stated under (i} does not apply to Trust Preferred Securities issued in 2004. The other conditions do apply.
If Rabobank Group realises a profit, Rabobank Nederland can make a distribution on these securities at its own discretion.

Trust Preferred Securities

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Changes during the year: L o
Qpening balance o pe2 187
Foreign exchange differences (133) 215
Closing balance - 1959 2,092_

32 Minority interests

This itemn relates to shares held by third parties in subsidiaries and other group companies. Moverments in minority interests
mainly relate to the full consolidation of Bank Sarasin of 548 million. The remainder is largely the resuit of the full consolidation
of structured finance deals.

tn millions of euros T T T Taee 200
Opening balance - R
Ng‘t'pmﬁ_t_ 00 184
(ﬂr_:eggy translation q_iffe‘rerg\ﬁsg o (191) . N 32@
Otherchanges . 1,178 {785)
Closingbalance 4,184  29%

C —




36 Net income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss

— —

In millions of euros 2006 2005

Deb_t instrumentsraipd interest rate derivative ‘r"jnancial instruments ~ (31757) {434)
Equity instruments B 506 525
Foreign currencrig_sid_ other trading income - o 44 {341}
Total trading income - _ 235 o (250)
Total net income from other financial assets and Iiabilitiesi 1 104

Total net income from financial assets and liabilities at fair

value through profit and loss 246 (146)

—

The trading income also includes gains and losses on spot and forward contracts, options, futures and assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies.

37 Other

As well as rent from real estate investments and income from operating leases, other includes the results on effects that cannct

be allocated to individual categories of the profit and loss account.

38 Staff costs

_— . ! - : —
In millions of euros 2006 2005
Wages and salaries . 2,792 2637
Social security contributions and insurance costs o 275 a2
Fﬂon_cosﬂor defined contribution plans 49 29
Pension costs for defined benefit plans . B 490 620
Other post-employment benefits e (25) as7
Other employee costs ) o 540 579
Total staff costs . S 4117 3880

Expressed in FTECs, the average number of employees was 48,076 {47,876).




39 Other administrative expenses

This item includes office supplies, IT expenses, postage, advertising, rent, maintenance of buildings, etc.

2006 2005

In millions of euros

Other a@ministratiyg expenses - ) i 7- ~ 2,429 ) ) 2031
40 Depreciation and amortisation

In millions of euros 2006 2005
Depreciation and amortisation o ) 341 ) 331
41 Value adjustments

In millions of euros N 2006 2005
Due f_rp_rn other_b:gn_ks' o S o i (23) i X 1
Loans to customers N 7 ] ~ 495 ‘ 575
Receipts less write-offs o - L B B (31 ) (41)
Creditrgla;edliabiljties o 7 o N - ) o (n
Availab_le-for-sale_ﬁﬂa_ncial assets o . o ) 9 o -
Other assets o i o o o - 7
Total value adjustments N 450 _ 517




42 Taxation

In millions of euros 2006 200%
Current income tax i _ i B o N
- year under review ) _ i 346 556
- prior years 64) (9)
Deferred tax 85 (26)
Taxation 367 521
The taxation on operating profit of Rabobank differs from the nominal amount based on Duich standard tax rates.
The reconcifiation between the two amounts is shown below:
In millions of euros 2006 20(;5
Profit before taxation 7 2,712 2,6[54
Tax exempt incorﬁe and in;ome to wr;i;h tax treia?ies a'p|.3|;7 v (987) (979)
Non-deductible expenses 7 v 106 1 14
Tax losses not recognised in prior years R (101} (151)
Other N o 43 !;8
1,773 1,649
Income tax expense based on a rate Vof 29.6% (2605: 31.5%) 525 519
Effect of change in tax rates ) ) 37 i ?9
Effect of different tax rates in other countries and- other
non-recurring tax credits (195) (37)
Taxation 367 _ Sgl

-

In 2006, the Dutch government reduced the standard rate of income tax from 31.5% to 29.6%.




43 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

There were no major disposals in 2006. The main acquisitions made in 2006 relate to Bouwfonds, Athlon, Central Coast
Bancorp {USA) and Bank Sarasin (Switzerland).

The fair values of the identifiable assets and lizbilities of Bouwfonds and the cther entities acquired are as follows:

[ ']

B Bouﬁands Other _
Recognrirsed at Recoénised at
fair value upon fair value upon
In millions of euros acquisition Carrying value acquisition Carrying value
Intangible assets - ' t i - I - . N 78 - "‘I.12
Property and equipment 7 ~ _7 _ . . ‘ 178 - é4 A 2,282 2,317
Financial assets o _7 ) 7;_17,491 1523 7 1887 1,987
Other assets 4,847 4,757 7 4,115 4,086
Total identiﬁable_assets m o 6,516_7 6,304 ‘ 8,462 ) 8,502
Due to other banks 7_ B __ i 516]4 L 4674 2025 1,:9_96
Other liabilities 1,260 1,091 6,025 t;,025
Total identifiable I-iabilities i - 5,934‘ 5,765 8,050 80
Total net equity - - _ , :_ - 52 o 539 - 412 i 481
New identifiable i;)ta-r-tgiblejassets o 7 - " ) 469 )

Rabobank consolidated Bank Sarasin in full at the end of 20086, following the expansion of its share.

44 Transactions with related parties

Two parties are considered related if one exercises control or has significant influence over the other party (regarding
finance or operating decisions). In the normal course of business, Rabobank conducts a wide variety of transactions with
related entities, involving different types of loans, deposits and transactions in foreign currencies. Transactions between
related parties also include transacticns with subsidiaries, associates, joint venture entities, shareholders and senior
management, as well as transactions between subsidiaries. All these transactions were at arm’s length. In accordance

with |AS 244, intra-group transactions are eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In the normal course of Rabobank’s business operations, banking transactions are carried out with related parties.

These involve loans, deposits and transactions in foreign currencies, All these transactions were at arm'’s length and against
market prices. The volumes of related party transactions, year-end outstanding balances and the corresponding income
and expenses during the year are given below:




JR— -+

Associates Other related parties
In miflions of euros ) 2006 - 2005 200_6 20{;5
Loans h ) o - o 7 :
- outstanding at beginning of the year ) o 33 1,023 7272 6
- granted during the year ) o 601 N ; _ _2:8
- repaid during the year (89) (990) (2-9) (12
Loans outstanding at end of the' year : _ 545 33 29 22
Due to other banks -and due to ;ustomers j_ N o i : 7 l t
- outstanding at beginning of thé year ' 5,969 1,002 - 1
- received during the year i : __ 296 5311 ] _: o
- repaid during the_y_ear _ - (344) - 7(_1)
Deposits at 31 DeceTber _ _ L 6,265 b 5,969 - .
Other Iiabi.lities - v _j ti 7 9;“_“ ; 66—- _ EB ES
Credit liabilities and other guarantees issued by Rabobank : _— 1,743 1,051-1;” 7 E ' 20%6
) ) ) N o As-sc;a'tes' - Other re_lated parti_e:
In milliens of euros N ) . - 2006—_ 2005_ 2(_)0—6- ) “2_0_55
Income ) ) ) : “___ ) B —7 -_:
- interest income 7 ) 25 R 22 7&) - 2
- commission inconiuf o 3 _ 127— gi__ lZOt 7]@9
- trading income - i - 55 277 7 3 10
-‘;t—her - 7 3 - 74 -
Total incc;me from t?ansactions;with relate_ré partie:s _7 :_ B 95;__ 8077 287 ) ) 121
e T T
- interest expense L n - 74 m -
- commission expenée i ) _ 24 3 4 2
Total expenses from‘transactio}\s with related parties 95 77 115 2




45 Supervisory Board and Executive Board

The members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board are listed on page 83 of these consolidated financial
statements. The benefits for members and former members of the Executive Board came to 9.8 in 2006 {7.9). This amount
is included under staff costs. It can be broken down as follows.

[ = 1

In millions of euros 2006 2005

Salaries i - - - o o —66 —7-7 ) g?%
Pensior_l c_h;rges - - o o ) 1.2 3 _ ' 06
Perform;xce related t;r;e-ﬁts- S S _—1.7 14
ower _ 03 o

Total 98 79

C 1

The total benefits for members and former members of the Supervisory Board amounted to 1.3 (1.2).
At year-end 20086, loans and advances granted to members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board totalled 3.9
(1.4) respectively 4.2 (3.4).

—] [




46 Principal subsidiaries and associates

C

+

Name Share Voting rights
Subsidiaries N
Netherlands

De Lage Landen International B.V. 1009;: i 1009:6
FGH Bank 100% 100%
OWM Rabobanken B.A. - 100% 100‘{6
Obvion N.V. - o . ) 50% i} 709_6
Rabohypotheekbank N.V. 100% 100%
Rabobank Ledencertificaten N.V. i t/m il 100% 100%
Rabo Merchant Bank N.V. - ‘ 1009:6 100%
Rabo Vastgoed B.V. o - 100% B 100%
Rabo Bouwfonds B.V. i o i 100% 100%
Rabo Wielerploegen B.V. i ) 100% 100%
Raiffeisenhypotheekbank N.V. o - 100% 100%
Robeco Groep N.V. 100%3 ) ) 100?6
Schretlen & Co N.V. B ) 100% 100%
Other Euro zone / EU countries B ] . _ o t
ACC Bank Plc a 100% 100%
Rest of Europe o i N :
Bank Sarasin & Cie S.A. i . 46% ) 6926
North America B _ ) : B ) :
Rabobank Capital Funding LCC 11 t/m VI 100% 100%
Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Il tYm VI o _ 100% ) 100%
Utrecht America Holdings Inc, o B 100% i 100?{?
Australia and New Zealand i i : __ ; :
Rabobank Australia Limited ) L o 100% __ lo0%
Rabobank New Zealand Limited o ~ 100% 100%
Associates _ _ _ o -
Netherlands i} : 7i B ; o )
Eureko B.V. _ _ 7_ _ ) 38‘;6_ 38}6
Equens N.V. 3 o o _ 19% - 19%
Gilde Venture Capit_al funds _ L . B Various e Varioy;
Abroad L L
BGZ SA. B % o 35%
Yes Bank B 20% 20%




47 Reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing agreements

Reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing agreements concluded by Rabobank are included under

‘Due from other banks’ and 'Loans to customers. At 31 Decemnber, they amounted to:

In millions of euros 2006 2005

Due from other banks ) ] 35,790 i , 36,758
Loans to customers 28,396 23,484

Total reverse repurchase transactions and securities

borrowing agreements ] 64,186 60,2j2

C —

Under the terms of the reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing agreements, Rabobank receives collateral
that it can pledge or sell to third parties. The total fair value of the securities received under the terms of the agreements
was 64,446 at 31 December 2006 (61,391). In accordance with the agreement terms, part of the securities was pledged or
sold as collateral in 2006.

48 Repurchase transactions and securities lending agreements

Repurchase transactions and securities lending agreements concluded by Rabobank are included under ‘Due from/ to
other banks, Due to Customers and ‘Other loans. At 31 December, they armounted to:

C 1

In millions of euros 2006 2005

Due to other banks 17,710 20,496
Due to customers B _ i _ 8,107 5392
Total repurchase and securities lending agreements 25,817 ) 25,888

[« 1

At 31 December 2006 and 2005, interest-bearing securities with a carrying amount of 25,981 and 26,382 respectively had
been pravided as collateral for repurchase and similar agreements. In general, the counterparty has the right to resell or
repledge the securities.




49 Subsequent events

Uniil now no events after the balance sheet date have occurred.

50 Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting

The management of Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank Nederland) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Management is also responsible for the

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Rabobank Nederland’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financia! reporting and the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control ever financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness 1o future periods are subject 1o the risk that contrel may become inadequate, because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Rababank Nederland’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006 based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsaring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) estabilished in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on that assessment, management concluded that,
as of December 31, 2006, Rabobank Nederland's internal control over financial reporting is effective based on the criteria
established by COSQ.

Ernst & Young Accountants, which have audited the consolidated financiai statements of Rabobank Nederland for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2006, have alse examined management’s assessment of the effectiveness of Rabobank
Nederland's internal control aver financial reporting and the effectiveness of Rabobank Nederland's internal control over

financial reporting; their report is included herein.

Bert Heemskerk (H.) Bert Bruggink (A.)




51 Approval by Supervisory Board

The publication of these consclidated financial statements was approved by the Supervisory Board on 5 March 2007.

Executive Board

Bert Heemskerk (H.), chairman
Bert Bruggink (A)

Hans ten Cate (J.C)

Piet Moerland (PW)

Sipko Schat (S.N.)

Piet van Schijndel (PJ.A)

Supervisory Board

Lense Koopmans (L), chairman
Antoon Vermeer (AJ.AM), deputy chairman
Sjoerd Eisma (S.E), secretary
Leo Berndsen (LJM)

Bernard Bijvoet (B)

Teun de Boon (T)

Louise Fresco {LO)

Marinus Minderhoud (M)

Paul Overmars (PEM.)

Hans van Rossum (JAAM.)
Herman Scheffer (HC)

Martin Tielen (MJM.)

Aad Veenman (AW)

Arnold Walravens (AH.CM)




Auditor’s report

To the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of Rabobank Nederland

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the 2006 consolidated financial statements of
Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenlesnbank B.A. (Rabobank
Nederland), Amsterdam. The consolidated financial statements
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006,

the consolidated profit and icss account, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility

Management of Rabobank Nederland is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands
Civil Code, and for the preparation of the management report in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

This responsibility inciudes: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinien on the consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Dutch law. This law requires that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

staternents, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumnstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Executive Board of the Rabobank Nederland,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consclidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate t¢ provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of Rabobank Nederland as at 31 December
2006 and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and with Part § of Book 2 of the Netherlands
Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Pursuant 1o the legal requirement under 2:393 sub 5 part e of the
Netherlands Civil Code, we repart, to the extent of our competence,
that the management report is consistent with the financial statements
as required by 2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

Utrecht, 5 March 2007

for Ernst & Young Accountants

/s/ GH.C. de Meris




Assurance report of
ndependent Auditors

To the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of Rabobank Nederland

We have performed an assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE
3000 ‘Assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historica?
financial information’ (equivalent} on management's assessment,
included in the accompanying '"Management's Report On [nternal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Cotperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-
Boerenleenbank B.A. (Rabobank Nederland) maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2006, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria).

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed
1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
contrel over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipis and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
comgany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or tirrely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispasition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financiat
statements.

Inherent limitations

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Management’s responsibility

Rabobank Nederland's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal centrol over financial reporting.

Auditor’s responsibility

Qur responsibility is to conclude on management's assessment and
on the effectiveness of the company's internal control over financial
reporting based on the procedures performed during our assurance
engagement.

We conducted our assurance engagement in accordance with Dutch
law. This requires that we plan and perform the assurance engagement
1o obtain reasenable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Cur assurance engagement included obtaining an undersianding of
internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that the
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur conclusion,

Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed we conclude that management's
conclusion that, as of 31 December 2006, Rabobank Nederland's internal
control over financial reporting is effective, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on the COSO criteria. We also conclude that Rabobank
Nederland maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financiat reporting as of 31 December 2006, based on the COSO
criteria.

Utrecht, 5 March 2007

for Ernst & Young Accountants

GH.LC. de Meris
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